
 

 

 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
 
Wednesday 14 October 2015 at 2.00 pm 
 
To be held at the Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 
 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillor Julie Dore (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Leigh Bramall (Deputy Leader/Cabinet Member for Business, 

Skills & Development) 
Councillor Isobel Bowler (Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods) 
Councillor Ben Curran (Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources) 
Councillor Jackie Drayton (Cabinet Member for Children, Young People & 

Families) 
Councillor Jayne Dunn (Cabinet Member for Housing) 
Councillor Terry Fox (Cabinet Member for Environment and 

Transport) 
Councillor Mazher Iqbal (Cabinet Member for Public Health and Equality) 
Councillor Mary Lea (Cabinet Member for Health, Care & Independent 

Living) 
 

  

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Cabinet discusses and takes decisions on the most significant issues facing the 
City Council.  These include issues about the direction of the Council, its policies and 
strategies, as well as city-wide decisions and those which affect more than one 
Council service.  Meetings are chaired by the Leader of the Council, Councillor Julie 
Dore.   
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk.  You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm.  You may not be allowed to see some reports because they 
contain confidential information.  These items are usually marked * on the agenda.  
 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Cabinet 
meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the Chair.  Please see the 
website or contact Democratic Services for further information regarding public 
questions and petitions and details of the Council’s protocol on audio/visual 
recording and photography at council meetings. 
 
Cabinet meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the Cabinet may 
have to discuss an item in private.  If this happens, you will be asked to leave.  Any 
private items are normally left until last.  If you would like to attend the meeting 
please report to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to the 
meeting room. 
 
Cabinet decisions are effective six working days after the meeting has taken place, 
unless called-in for scrutiny by the relevant Scrutiny Committee or referred to the 
City Council meeting, in which case the matter is normally resolved within the 
monthly cycle of meetings.   
 
If you require any further information please contact Simon Hughes on 0114 273 
4014 or email simon.hughes@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 
 



 

 

 

CABINET AGENDA 
14 OCTOBER 2015 

 
Order of Business 

 
1. Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements  
2. Apologies for Absence  
3. Exclusion of Public and Press  
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to 

exclude the press and public 
 

 

4. Declarations of Interest (Pages 1 - 4) 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business 

to be considered at the meeting 
 

 

5. Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 18) 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held 

on 16 September 2015 
 

 

6. Public Questions and Petitions  
 To receive any questions or petitions from members of the 

public 
 

 

7. Items Called-In For Scrutiny  
 The Director of Legal and Governance will inform the 

Cabinet of any items called in for scrutiny since the last 
meeting of the Cabinet 
 

 

8. Retirement of Staff (Pages 19 - 20) 
 Report of the Interim Executive Director, Resources 

 
 

9. Step up to Social Work (Pages 21 - 128) 
 Report of the Executive Director, Children, Young People 

and Families 
 

 

10. Revenue Budget and Capital Programme Monitoring 
Month 5 (as at 31/8/15) 

(Pages 129 - 
178) 

 Report of the Interim Executive Director, Resources 
 

 

11. Medium Term Financial Strategy 2016-21  
 Interim Executive Director, Resources to report 

 
 

 NOTE: The next meeting of Cabinet will be held on 
Wednesday 11 November 2015 at 2.00 pm 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 

• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 

• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 

• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 
meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 

• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 
which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 

• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 
a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



 2

 

• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 
have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 

 

• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 

• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 
securities of a body where -  

 

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b) either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 2



 3

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and 
Governance on 0114 2734018 or email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Cabinet 
 

Meeting held 16 September 2015 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Julie Dore (Chair), Isobel Bowler, Jackie Drayton, 

Jayne Dunn, Terry Fox, Mazher Iqbal and Mary Lea 
 

 
   

 
1.  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Leigh Bramall and Ben 
Curran. 

 
2.  
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 The Chair reported that appendices to agenda items 12 ‘Key Bus Route – 
Chesterfield Road Land Acquisition and Compulsory Bus Order’, 13 ‘Future 
Options for SCC Property and Facilities Management Service’ and 14 ’The J.G 
Graves Charitable Trust: Proposed Letting of Agricultural Land at Clough Lane 
and Mark Lane’ were not available to the public and press because they contained 
exempt information described in Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended) and if Members wished to discuss these 
appendices the public and press would need to be excluded from the meeting. 

 
3.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 Councillor Jackie Drayton declared a personal interest in agenda item 13 ‘The J.G 
Graves Charitable Trust: Proposed Letting of Agricultural Land at Clough Lane 
and Mark Lane’ as a trustee of the J.G Graves Charitable Trust in a personal 
capacity. 

 
4.  
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

4.1 The minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 22 July 2015 were approved as 
a correct record. 

 
5.  
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

5.1 Public Question in respect of Walkley Library 
  
 Nigel Slack commented that at the last Cabinet meeting a question was put by a 

member of the public asking whether a report of the negotiations and the decision 
to sell the Walkley Library building to Forum Café Group was available as the 
matter was before Scrutiny Committee the same week. 

  
 Mr Slack stated that Councillor Bowler had replied to that question by stating ‘A 

Freedom of Information request could be made by the questioner but would not 
produce results by tomorrow’s Scrutiny Committee meeting.’ Mr Slack commented 
that the Scrutiny Committee had met and decided the issue in one meeting, even 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



Meeting of the Cabinet 16.09.2015 

Page 2 of 14 
 

though they clearly could not have been in receipt of the evidence the questioner 
had asked for. 

  
 This was, in Mr Slack’s opinion, unfair and certainly did not live up to item 6 of the 

Sheffield Fairness Framework ‘To be seen to act in a fair way as well as acting 
fairly’. Mr Slack therefore asked wouldn’t the fair approach have been to defer the 
decision to the next meeting so that the information could have been made 
available and a decision be made on the full facts? 

  
 In response, Councillor Isobel Bowler, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods, 

commented that Mr Slack had only quoted part of her response to the question at 
the last Cabinet meeting, held on 22 July 2015. The full response Councillor 
Bowler had given was that ‘She had not been involved in these negotiations, had 
not seen any report on them and doubted such a report existed. A Freedom of 
Information request could be made by the questioner but would not produce 
results by tomorrow’s Scrutiny Committee meeting. Dave Wood, Interim Property 
Surveying Manager, would be presenting the report at the Scrutiny Committee 
meeting and she would make him aware of Ms. Simmonds question.’ 

  
 As stated, Councillor Bowler had made Dave Wood aware of the question prior to 

the Scrutiny Committee meeting. As she had suspected, no such report of the 
negotiations had been produced, so any Freedom of Information request would 
not have given access to a report. At the Scrutiny Committee meeting Councillor 
Bowler and officers had answered all questions in detail and referred to the 
request for access to a report on the negotiations and that no such report existed. 
Therefore, she did not believe the process had not been fair as Mr Slack had 
suggested and she always tried to be as open and transparent as possible. 

  
5.2 Public Question in respect of Sheffield Moorlands report 
  
 Nigel Slack referred to the report in respect of Sheffield Moorlands, on the agenda 

for the meeting.  He stated that the report made comment concerning the 
importance of accountability and the following statement about representation: 
‘The proposed lessees will be required to make proposals for a Key Partner’s 
Forum, a Stakeholder Forum and for an Annual Meeting open to all interested 
parties, for the approval of the Council. The proposals are to cover: frequency of 
meetings; terms of reference; representation and protocols.’ Mr Slack commented 
that this was all very positive but he believed inevitably with any private 
management of public assets there will be a loss of transparency unless the lease 
agreement also requires the private (albeit charitable) management to submit to 
the Freedom of Information Act. Will the Council add this provision to the lease? 

  
 Councillor Bowler replied that the report referred to transparency of the new 

management arrangement for the Moors. In terms of Mr Slack’s request, Freedom 
of Information regulations cannot be imposed on an organisation although it 
applied to any City Council business. She hoped that there would not be a need to 
use Freedom of Information legislation as there were a range of measures in the 
new agreement to ensure transparency, such as a Stakeholder Forum, an Annual 
General Meeting, the opportunity to ask public questions, the South Yorkshire 
Management Plan which the Cabinet Member would sign off and an Annual 

Page 6



Meeting of the Cabinet 16.09.2015 

Page 3 of 14 
 

Review of performance against the Management Plan which would be published. 
  
5.3 Public Question in respect of Devolution 
  
 Nigel Slack commented that at the Sheffield City Region Combined Authority 

(SCRCA) meeting held on Monday, an update was given about the proposals the 
SCRCA have put to Government on the so called ‘devolution’ deal. Mr Slack 
believed the update was a bit shy on detail but from business sources he had 
learned that the asks from the Region implied control over an extra £750m or 
more of public and private funding. 

  
 If the SCRCA achieved all they were asking for, Mr Slack considered that it will 

almost certainly result in the imposition of a City Region Elected Mayor. It was 
also clear that the cost of the Mayor will be borne by the local Council Tax payers, 
through a precept. Had any work been done to assess the cost of a City Region 
Mayoral office and staff and the impact this will have on increased Council Taxes 
or further cuts to local services? 

  
 The Leader of the Council, Councillor Julie Dore, responded that, in relation to the 

figure stated of £750m, this was not something that she had heard. The 
Government had made it clear that until a settlement had been agreed the 
negotiations had to remain confidential amongst the Combined Authority. 

  
 The demands from the Combined Authority were very ambitious and asked for 

major changes to the current system. Councillor Dore acknowledged that not 
every demand may be met but everything was currently on the table to be 
negotiated. The Combined Authority Members were clear that they would resist as 
far as possible the imposition of an Elected Mayor as this would create difficulties 
geographically across the region and this had been made clear to the 
Government. 

  
 Councillor Dore believed the current governance model of the Combined Authority 

was working well as evidenced by the recent City Deal, growth deal etc. The 
demands on the table from the Combined Authority at the present time related to 
economic drivers. She believed the Combined Authority could agree a deal 
without the imposition of an Elected Mayor but that remained to be seen. 

  
 Councillor Dore confirmed that any costs would have to be subsumed within the 

devolution deal and the administrative structure that was agreed. A deal would not 
be agreed unless it vastly improved services and funding and would not 
detrimentally impact on Council Tax or services. 

  
5.4 Public Question in respect of New Retail Quarter 
  
 Nigel Slack stated that proposals for the New Retail Quarter were grinding ahead 

and, presumably, under the current proposals the land now owned by the Council 
in the City Centre will be returned to private ownership. This brought concerns for 
Mr Slack over the private ownership of perceived public land such as roads, 
pavements and ‘public’ squares etc. Private ownership of these types of spaces 
could lead to the public having their traditional rights curtailed, such as the right to 

Page 7



Meeting of the Cabinet 16.09.2015 

Page 4 of 14 
 

protest, assemble and so forth. Will the Council, therefore, be taking steps to 
retain true public ownership of these spaces in order to protect such rights? 

  
 Councillor Dore replied that the Council always tried to retain as much public 

ownership as possible when it came to public realm and there were very few 
occasions where they didn’t. In relation to the New Retail Quarter, the Council 
would try to do that but it may be a decision for the main developer. However, she 
expected that it would be in the developer’s interest to keep the public realm up to 
a good standard to be more attractive to visitors. The aim would be to find the best 
solution for the City. 

  
5.5 Public Question in respect of the Council’s Development Partner 
  
 Nigel Slack asked will the candidates for the Council’s development partner be 

assessed on the same standards as potential contractors i.e. Tax Propriety etc? 
  
 Councillor Dore confirmed they would be assessed by the same standards. The 

Council was currently revising its procurement policies and was constantly striving 
to ensure standards were met. 

  
5.6 Public Question in respect of Transparency and Webcasting 
  
 Nigel Slack commented that he congratulated the Council on their plans to return 

more public services to Council control, under item 13 on the agenda for the 
meeting, but for him it was about transparency and accountability rather than cost. 
Could we look forward to other services being returned in due course? And whilst 
on transparency, what was the status of the plans to webcast meetings of the 
Council? 

  
 Councillor Dore emphasised that the wish of the Council was to insource as much 

as possible if it met the needs of the particular service. Every individual case was 
looked at on its merits. In the example referred to by Mr Slack on the agenda for 
the meeting, insourcing some services was felt to be the best option but the 
Council were not necessarily in a position to insource everything. 

  
 The issue of webcasting was still being investigated and she would speak to 

Councillor Ben Curran, Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources, to establish 
what the current position was. 

  
5.7 Public Question in respect of Councillor Status 
  
 Nigel Slack commented that, with the self-suspension of Councillor Clarkson, what 

did this mean for the representation of the public of his Ward? Will he be able to 
fulfil the role ascribed in Article 2 of the Constitution (Effectively represent the 
interests of their Ward and of individual constituents) and, if not, what are the 
consequences? 

  
 Councillor Dore responded that once Councillors were elected they were 

effectively self-employed. One of their main duties was to attend the Full Council 
meeting. Thereafter it was the individuals responsibility to manage the needs and 

Page 8



Meeting of the Cabinet 16.09.2015 

Page 5 of 14 
 

resources to suit that position. 
  
 As stated, the main requirement of a Councillor was to attend Full Council 

meetings. If a Councillor did not attend a meeting for six months action could be 
taken, but this would be dependent on the individual circumstances of the 
Councillor concerned. 

  
 The Council could not take any action against the Councillor concerned at the 

present time. No complaints had been received. If any complaints were received, 
they would be considered at that time. The Council had retained its Standards 
Committee and any complaint would be managed through the Standards 
Committee process. 

  
5.8 Public Question in respect of Mount Pleasant Development 
  
 Jonny Douglas commented that his question related to the Mount Pleasant 

development on Sharrow Lane. For 12 months he and his colleagues had been 
trying to register interest for their community development project for the site and 
gain the relevant information to put a proper proposal together. They felt they had 
been unfairly treated, disadvantaged and actively obstructed, both directly by Kier 
themselves and indirectly through the misleading and misinforming of Councillors 
and Council departments at every step of the way, to the extent that they had to 
use Freedom of Information requests, which revealed, among other things that the 
‘Exclusivity Contract’ period which was repeatedly cited had in fact finished 
months early, and the pre-planning proposal from the currently engaged, 
seemingly preferred, commercial developer had been deemed inappropriate and 
unworkable. He therefore asked the following questions:- 
 
1) In light of the report being considered later in the meeting, which recommended 
that Kier’s contract to handle property disposal (and other services) be terminated, 
are Cabinet willing to call a halt to these proceedings in order to ensure all 
interested parties are given a fair hearing and the chance to have their proposals 
for this important Community Asset property considered? 
 
2) On Monday 7 September Nigel Slack (who has been helping us with our 
project) was told by Councillor Jayne Dunn that the signing of a contract with the 
developer was imminent and could happen as soon as Friday 11th, yet yesterday 
we were informed by Dave Wood that this was “never the intention of either party”. 
With the constant movement of goalposts and apparent continually changing 
status of talks with the current developer, can Cabinet say here today: (a) what 
stage the current negotiations are at, and (b) the timeline for any further stages? 
 
3) I would like to request a meeting with the appropriate Cabinet Members and the 
Leader to discuss this matter further please. 

  
 Councillor Dore commented that she had seen the email in relation to the 

development from Mr Douglas the morning of this meeting and was not aware of 
all the details. She would refer the matter to Councillor Ben Curran and ask him to 
respond to Mr Douglas’ comments. She would attend any meeting if necessary.  

  

Page 9



Meeting of the Cabinet 16.09.2015 

Page 6 of 14 
 

 She confirmed that no final decision on the matter had been made and if Mr 
Douglas wished to provide any additional information she would be happy to 
receive it. 

  
 Dave Wood, Interim Property Surveying Manager, commented that approval had 

been given to sell the building. However, contracts had not been exchanged and 
no one had said that contracts would be exchanged that week. The disposal 
would be put on hold prior to a meeting with Councillor Curran next week. 

 
6.  
 

ITEMS CALLED-IN FOR SCRUTINY 
 

6.1 It was reported that a call-in of the Leader’s decision on the Proposed Disposal of 
Walkley Library, taken on 30 June 2015, was considered at a meeting of the 
Economic and Environmental Wellbeing Scrutiny and Policy Development 
Committee held on 29 July 2015. The Committee had resolved that no action be 
taken on the called-in decision. The Cabinet noted the information reported. 

 
7.  
 

RETIREMENT OF STAFF 
 

 The Interim Executive Director, Resources, submitted a report on Council staff 
retirements.  

  
 RESOLVED: That this Cabinet :-  
  
 (a) places on record its appreciation of the valuable services rendered to the City 

Council by the following staff in the Portfolios below:- 
  
 Name Post Years’ Service 
    
 Children, Young People and Families  
    
 Anthony Bailey Buildings Officer, Wharncliffe 

Side Primary School 
41 

    
 Alexandra Crawshaw Primary Consultant 40 
    
 Julie Crookes Teacher, Bents Green School 31 
    
 Alan McIntosh Exam Officer/Data Manager, 

Stocksbridge High School 
37 

    
 Christine Peat Senior Teaching Assistant 

Level 3, Lower Meadow 
Primary School 

20 

    
 Communities  
    
 Jean Bennett Care Manager Level 3 30 
    
 Resources   

Page 10



Meeting of the Cabinet 16.09.2015 

Page 7 of 14 
 

    
 Daryl Johnson Finance Officer 38 
    
 Kim Kelly Driver/Attendant 31 
    
 Lynda Skill Assistant Finance Officer 37 
    
 Peter Shemeld Operational Delivery Officer 30 
    
 Russell Webster Multi Functional Driver 40 
  
 (b) extends to them its best wishes for the future and a long and happy retirement; 

and 
  
 (c) directs that an appropriate extract of this resolution under the Common Seal of 

the Council be forwarded to them. 
 
8.  
 

BURBAGE, HOUNDKIRK AND HATHERSAGE MOORS - PROPOSED LEASE 
TO THE NATIONAL TRUST FOR PLACES OF HISTORIC INTEREST OR 
NATURAL BEAUTY AND THE ROYAL SOCIETY FOR THE PROTECTION OF 
BIRDS (RSPB) 
 

8.1 The Executive Director, Place submitted a report in relation to the proposed lease 
to the National Trust for Places of Historic Interest or Natural Beauty and the Royal 
Society for the Protection of Birds (RSPB) of Burbage, Houndkirk and Hathersage 
Moors. 

  
8.2 A map showing the locations was circulated to Members at the meeting. 
  
8.3 RESOLVED: That Cabinet:- 
  
 (a) welcomes the support expressed in response to the advertised disposal of 

Burbage, Houndkirk and Hathersage Moors; 
   
 (b) notes the concerns expressed by two respondents with the measures 

proposed to mitigate such concerns; 
   
 (c) approves the granting of a lease of Burbage, Houndkirk and Hathersage 

Moors to the National Trust for Places of Historic Interest or National 
Beauty and the Royal Society for the Protection of Birds in accordance with 
the terms of the report; and 

   
 (d)  delegates authority to the Director of Legal and Governance to complete 

the lease in accordance with the terms of the report and such further 
detailed provisions as may be approved by the Director of Capital and 
Major Projects. 

   
8.4 Reasons for Decision 
  
8.4.1 Through the terms of the proposed lease, the RSPB and National Trust will bring 

Page 11



Meeting of the Cabinet 16.09.2015 

Page 8 of 14 
 

substantial additional expertise and resources to support the long term sustainable 
management of this valuable and cherished landscape, within a robust framework 
of consultation, stakeholder engagement and accountability to the City Council. 

  
8.5 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
8.5.1 Retain direct management of the site with complete control and flexibility over 

future use and management. Not considered a viable alternative as existing 
resources are inadequate to ensure sustainable management, a situation which is 
unlikely to improve in the foreseeable future. This alternative is unlikely to: 
 

• optimise the benefit of environmental grant aid available 

• generate comparable levels of investment from third party 
organisations 

• result in the same degree of public engagement in the management 
of the site 

  
8.5.2 Undertake a procurement exercise to find an alternative partner organisation to 

assist the Council in the long term future management of the moors. This option 
has been considered but discounted due to: 
 

• the track record of the National Trust/RSPB in delivering 
demonstrable public benefits through exemplary stakeholder engagement 
and land management on the adjoining Eastern Moors leased from the 
Peak District National Park Authority 

• the beneficial effect of the close proximity of the National Trust’s 
operations at Longshaw and the RSPB/National Trust’s base at Barbrook in 
delivering effective day to day management of the Council’s moors 

• lessons learned from management of the Eastern Moors, within the 
context of the established network of stakeholder engagement, can be 
applied to the benefit of the Council’s moors 

• the National Trust and RSPB are existing partners in the Sheffield 
Moors Partnership and are fully committed to delivery of the wider vision for 
the Sheffield Moors, through delivery of the masterplan  

  
 
9.  
 

LONDON ROAD SHOP FRONT IMPROVEMENT SCHEME 
 

9.1 The Executive Directors, Place and Communities, submitted a joint report seeking 
Cabinet approval for a proposed London Road Shop Front Improvement Scheme 
to be delivered under the Successful Centres Programme. 

  
9.2 Appendix 1, which had been omitted from the agenda in error, was circulated to 

Members. 
  
9.3 RESOLVED: That the proposed London Road Shop Front Improvement Scheme 

detailed in the report and set out in Appendix 1 of the report be approved. 
  
9.4 Reasons for Decision 
  

Page 12



Meeting of the Cabinet 16.09.2015 

Page 9 of 14 
 

9.4.1 The Thriving District Local Centre strategy approved by the Central Community 
Assembly in 2012 identified the importance of improving the appearance and 
public realm within the Sharrow/London Road district centre. 

  
9.4.2 The proposed scheme will support independent traders, boost the confidence and 

image of the centre and help increase footfall to improve the local economy. 
  
9.5 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
9.5.1 Do nothing – This would mean leaving any improvement to the market. However, 

the current economic climate is not conducive to this, as there is already 
widespread market failure and there is a strong risk of London Road District 
Centre falling into further decline and unable to make the most from the other 
proposed investment opportunities. 

  
9.5.2 To deliver the Scheme by providing loans to owners to carry out the shop front 

improvements. In order for the scheme to be successful, the majority of 
independent traders need to participate so that a sufficient impact can be made on 
the street scene. In the current economic climate, owners will find it difficult to 
make substantial payments to fund the whole costs of shop front improvements 
and the scheme is likely to fail. 

  
9.5.3 As proposed. The Scheme aims to deliver a project that will deliver the agreed 

objectives for London Road/Sharrow District Centre outlined in the Successful 
Centres Strategy to improve the viability, use and appearance of the centre, and 
complement and consolidate the other proposed public and private sector 
investments. 

  
 
10.  
 

REVENUE BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING MONTH 3 
(AS AT 30/6/15) 
 

10.1 The Interim Executive Director, Resources submitted a report providing the month 
3 monitoring statement on the City Council’s Revenue and Capital Budget for 
2015/16. 

  
10.2 RESOLVED: That Cabinet:- 
  
 (a) notes the updated information and management actions provided by the 

report on the 2015/16 Revenue Budget position; and 
   
 (b) notes the latest position on the Capital Programme. 
   
10.3 Reasons for Decision 
  
10.3.1 To record formally changes to the Revenue Budget and the Capital Programme 

and gain Member approval for changes in line with Financial Regulations and to 
reset the capital programme in line with latest information. 

  
10.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 

Page 13



Meeting of the Cabinet 16.09.2015 

Page 10 of 14 
 

  
10.4.1 A number of alternate courses of action are considered as part of the process 

undertaken by Officers before decisions are recommended to Members. The 
recommendations made to Members represent what Officers believe to be the 
best options available to the Council, in line with Council priorities, given the 
constraints on funding and the use to which funding is put within the Revenue 
Budget and the Capital Programme. 

  
 
11.  
 

KEY BUS ROUTE - CHESTERFIELD ROAD LAND ACQUISITION AND 
COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER 
 

11.1 The Executive Director, Place submitted a report in relation to the Chesterfield 
Road Key Bus Route Improvement Scheme Land Acquisition and Compulsory 
Purchase Order. 

  
11.2 RESOLVED: That:- 
  
 (a) authority be given for the Council to make a Compulsory Purchase Order 

(CPO) under the powers conferred by the Highways Act 1980 to acquire the 
land coloured pink and occupy temporarily during the period of the works 
the land coloured blue on the map displayed at the meeting of the Cabinet 
on 16 September 2015 and marked ‘Map referred to in the City of Sheffield 
(Chesterfield Road) (Chesterfield Road Key Bus Route (Classified Road, 
A61) Compulsory Purchase Order 2015’; 

   
 (b) delegated authority be given to the Director of Legal and Governance to 

authorise the CPO, to take all necessary procedural steps prior to and after 
the making of the CPO, to enable the CPO to be submitted to the Secretary 
of State for confirmation, including: 
 
(a) finalising the attached draft Statement of Reasons; 
(b) finalising the Schedule of Interests; 
(c) serving notices of the making of the CPO on all persons entitled to such 
notice and placing necessary press notices; and 
(d) taking all necessary steps to confirm the Order if authorised by the 
Secretary of State; 

   
 (c) delegated authority be given to the Director of Finance and the Director of 

Capital and Major Projects, in conjunction with the Director of Legal and 
Governance, to acquire and/or secure affected land and rights by 
agreement in parallel with the CPO, so that the scheme can be 
implemented; 

   
 (d) the Director of Legal and Governance be authorised to sign and serve any 

Notices and, documents and together with the Executive Director, Place, be 
authorised to take all the necessary action to give effect to these 
recommendations; 

   
 (e) as soon as the Order is confirmed by the Secretary of State, the Director of 

Page 14



Meeting of the Cabinet 16.09.2015 

Page 11 of 14 
 

Legal and Governance be authorised to advertise the confirmation of the 
CPO and serve all necessary notices of confirmation and once the CPO 
becomes operative, to serve Notices to Treat under Section 5 of the 
Compulsory Purchase Act 1965, and where necessary, to serve Notices of 
Entry under Section 11 of the same Act in respect of the land included in 
the Order, or to execute general vesting declarations under the Compulsory 
Purchase (Vesting Declarations) Act 1981; and 

   
 (f) it be noted that a Capital Approval submission will be brought forward for 

the acquisition of the land. 
   
11.3 Reasons for Decision 
  
11.3.1 The use of the CPO to acquire the Order Land required for the Scheme is 

possible under the Highways Act 1980, and would be justified in the light of a 
compelling case in the public interest for the acquisition of the Order Land to 
enable the delivery of the Chesterfield Road Key Bus Route Improvement 
Scheme. 

  
11.3.2 Where the Council propose to make a CPO under these statutory provisions, the 

Council must be satisfied that the development is likely to contribute to the 
achievement of one or more of the following objectives, namely the promotion or 
improvement of the economic, social or environmental wellbeing of their area. 

  
11.3.3 It is considered that there is a compelling case in the public interest to justify the 

Council using its CPO powers to acquire the Order Land because the 
implementation of this Scheme will reduce congestion and delays around this 
busy section of the network, improving service reliability for buses, conditions for 
economic inward investment and contributing to reduced vehicle emissions. 

  
11.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
11.4.1 Where it is known that the City Council requires land for the delivery of a scheme, 

an owner or occupier may be prepared to sell their interest, and consequently the 
Council can, in some cases, pursue an acquisition by agreement, without the 
requirement for a CPO. 

  
11.4.2 An attempt to acquire, by agreement, the land and rights affected by the proposed 

scheme, prior to making a CPO, has been considered as an alternative option. 
Negotiations continue and are encouraging but given that the Government’s 
current spending review period dictates that all funds for the scheme need to be 
spent by December 2017, it is imperative for the Council to ensure that if 
negotiations to acquire the affected land by agreement fail, then it and any rights 
necessary to deliver the scheme can be acquired before the funding ends. 
Running these negotiations in parallel with the CPO process is therefore 
considered the most appropriate option. 

  
 
12.  
 

FUTURE OPTIONS FOR SCC PROPERTY AND FACILITIES MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES 

Page 15



Meeting of the Cabinet 16.09.2015 

Page 12 of 14 
 

 
12.1 The Executive Directors, Place and Resources submitted a joint report outlining 

future options for SCC Property and Facilities Management Services. 
  
12.2 RESOLVED: That Cabinet:- 
  
 (a) notes the contents of the report including the principles and assumptions 

described and have regards to the risks and mitigations as set out in the 
report and Appendix A to the report; 

   
 (b) approves the budget required to cover the one-off implementation and set-

up costs, as described in Appendix A of the report; 
   
 (c) approves the identified insourcing of Property Management, FM Service 

Delivery and Security and Events; 
   
 (d) notes the potential contracting-out of a small proportion of specialist 

property and catering services; 
   
 (e) approves the identified service retendering of Cleaning and Catering 

services; 
   
 (f) delegates authority to the Executive Director, Resources, in consultation 

with the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources:- 
 

• to carry out the appropriate contractual mechanisms to give notice to 
Kier Ltd to notify that the contract will not be extended and to carry 
out all necessary steps to identify and carry out the exit obligations; 
 

• to undertake formal consultation with Trade Unions regarding the 
transfer of staff engaged on the Kier Ltd contract into the Council and 
other transfer and transition arrangements (in consultation with the 
Director of Human Resources as necessary); 
 

• in consultation with the Director of Human Resources to develop the 
future structures of in sourced services within his portfolio; 
 

• in consultation with the Director of Commercial Services, the Director 
of Finance and the Director of Legal and Governance to approve a 
business case for the creation of joint venture arrangements for the 
Cleaning and Catering services 
 

• in consultation with the Director of Commercial Services, the Director 
of Finance and the Director of Legal and Governance, to approve the 
procurement strategy and subsequent contract awards for the 
outsourced Cleaning and Catering services, including, where a 
business case has been approved, a joint-venture arrangement; 
 

• to make arrangements to monitor the performance and delivery of 
the new service arrangements; 

Page 16



Meeting of the Cabinet 16.09.2015 

Page 13 of 14 
 

 

• any other actions he sees appropriate for the effective preparation 
for, and implementation of, the insourcing and future delivery of the 
identified service elements within his portfolio; and 

   
 (g) delegates authority to the Executive Director, Place, in consultation with the 

Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources:- 
 

• in consultation with the Director of Human Resources, to develop the 
future structures of insourced services within his portfolio; 
 

• approving the final procurement strategy, contract awards, joint-
venture arrangements and agreeing contract terms and entering into 
the contracts for all necessary associated goods and services (in 
consultation with the Director of Commercial Services and the 
Director of Legal and Governance as necessary); 
 

• any other actions he sees appropriate for the effective preparation 
for and implementation of the insourcing and future delivery of the 
identified service elements within his portfolio; 
 

• ensuring compliance with all relevant legislation to minimise the risk 
of disruption to the Organisation or the public; and 
 

• to make arrangements to monitor the performance and delivery of 
the new service arrangements. 

   
12.3 Reasons for Decision 
  
12.3.1 Each element of the proposed package has been considered on its merits. The 

proposals are being recommended as providing an appropriate balance between:- 
 

• Providing quality services, which meet the expectations of customers (both 
internal customers and the public) 
 

• Making a considerable, and ongoing contribution to the Council’s savings 
target, over and above what was envisaged as part of the 2008 contract 
 

• Maintaining risk (financial, legal, reputational and delivery) within 
acceptable limits 
 

• Being affordable and representing best value to the Organisation within the 
short and long term 
 

• Supporting the Organisation to transform its services and deliver differently 
  
12.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
12.4.1 To extend the full contract with Kier Ltd based on the service improvements and 

Page 17



Meeting of the Cabinet 16.09.2015 

Page 14 of 14 
 

savings offered within the contract renewal dialogue. 
  
12.4.2 To offer to extend elements of the contract with Kier Ltd based on the service 

improvements and savings offered within the contract renewal dialogue. 
  
12.4.3 To extend elements of the contract of sufficient duration to enable a specification 

for retender to be produced and evaluated. 
  
 
13.  
 

THE J.G.GRAVES CHARITABLE TRUST: PROPOSED LETTING OF 
AGRICULTURAL LAND AT CLOUGH LANE AND MARK LANE 
 

13.1 The Executive Director, Place submitted a report in relation to the proposed letting 
of agricultural land at Clough Lane and Mark Lane. 

  
13.2 RESOLVED: That Cabinet, acting as Charity Trustees in accordance with the 

powers given to the Council as Trustee in the Conveyance of the land to the 
Council, resolve to:- 

  
 (a) approve the granting of a ten year Farm Business Tenancy of land at 

Clough Lane and Mark Lane in accordance with the terms detailed in the 
report and the attached appendix; and 

   
 (b) delegates authority to the Director of Capital and Major Projects to instruct 

the Director of Legal and Governance to complete the tenancy agreement 
in accordance with the approved terms and such other detailed provisions 
as he may consider appropriate to the letting. 

   
13.3 Reasons for Decision 
  
13.3.1 The proposed new letting will benefit the Charity by securing an enhanced rent, 

increasing the net income available for distribution to the beneficiaries of the 
Trust. 

  
13.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
13.4.1 Freehold disposal of the land has been considered. Whilst it is understood that 

the specific consent of the Charity Commission would not be required for the sale 
of the land and for the proceeds to be invested and the income applied to achieve 
the objects of the Charity, it is considered that sale would be contrary to the 
express intentions of the gift by Alderman Graves. 

  
 

Page 18



 
 

 
Report of:   Interim Executive Director, Resources 
 

 
Date:    14th October 2015 
 

 
Subject:   Staff Retirements 
 

 
Author of Report:  Simon Hughes, Democratic Services 
 

 
Summary: To report the retirement of staff across the  
 Council’s various Portfolios 
 
 

 
Recommendations: 
 
Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 
(a) place on record its appreciation of the valuable services rendered to the 

City Council by members of staff in the various Council Portfolios and 
referred to in the attached list; 

 
(b) extend to them its best wishes for the future and a long and happy 

retirement; and  
 
(c) direct that an appropriate extract of the resolution now made under the 

Common Seal of the Council be forwarded to those staff above with over 
20 years’ service. 

 
 

 
Background Papers: None 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 

 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Cabinet Report 

Agenda Item 8

Page 19



2 

RETIREMENT OF STAFF 
 
1. To report the retirement of the following staff from the Council’s Service and 

to convey the Council’s thanks for their work:- 
 

 Name Post 
Years’ 
Service 

    
 Children, Young People and Families  
    
 Barbara Cox Analyst 41 
    
 Communities   
    
 Christine Elrick Support Worker 28 
    
 Eric Jackson Estate Officer, Council Housing Service 26 
    
 Place   
    
 Lloyd Marshall Business Support Assistant 23 
 
 
2. To recommend that Cabinet:- 
  
 (a) place on record its appreciation of the valuable services rendered to the 

City Council by the above-mentioned members of staff in the Portfolios 
stated; 

  
 (b) extend to them its best wishes for the future and a long and happy 

retirement; and 
  
 (c) direct that an appropriate extract of the resolution now made under the 

Common Seal of the Council be forwarded to those staff above with 
over 20 years’ service. 

 
 
 

Page 20



Form 2 – Executive Report                                                          January 2014 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Report of:   Jayne Ludlam 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Report to:   Cabinet 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    September 2015 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   Step Up to Social Work Programme 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Dorothy Smith 0114 2736976 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Key Decision:   YES 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reason Key Decision:  The external funding to be received from the DfE 
exceeds the £1.5million limit and is therefore required to be approved by 
Cabinet. 
 
 
 
         
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: The Step Up to Social Work programme is a Department for 
Education wholly funded initiative to promote people to change or start their 
careers in children and families social work by funding a 14 month degree in 
social work.  Sheffield City Council is the lead authority for the Yorkshire and 
Humberside Regional Partnership (the Partnership) which consists of 10 local 
authorities.  This programme started in 2010 and this report updates Cabinet on 
the progress of the programme whereby Sheffield City Council acts as a lead 
authority for the Partnership and administrates the external funding on its behalf.  
The report seeks approval for a number of agreements to facilitate the 
continuation of the programme. 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
 

Cabinet Report  
 

 

FORM 2 
Agenda Item 9

Page 21



Page 2 of 10 

Reasons for Recommendations: 
The Step Up to Social Work programme is a national initiative which is wholly  
funded by the Department for Education by way of a grant.  This funding includes 
a bursary payment for each successful student on the degree programme, 
funding of the University course, funding for training and supervision of each 
student whilst they are placed in their host authority across the region and 
administration of funding by the lead authority.  
 
The programme has been running since 2010 and has flagship status both 
regionally and nationally. The Yorkshire and Humberside Regional Partnership is 
the largest of the 18 national partnerships participating in the Step up to Social 
Work programme.   This initiative has produced 108 high calibre graduates since 
its initiation and 98% of these graduates have been successful in gaining 
employment as social workers in authorities across this region.  This initiative 
has proven to be highly successful in resolving recruitment difficulties in social 
work in children and families.   
 
This year the DfE have approved funding for the Yorkshire and Humberside 
region to host 50 students which means that external funding awarded will be 
£1.7m for the 14 month programme which will start in January 2016. Admissions 
recruitment took place in June/July 2015.  Sheffield is the lead authority and acts 
as the broker for the grant funding with the responsibility of distribution of funding 
to each authority as directed by the Department of Education and oversees the 
success of the programme. 
 
The other nine local authorities in the Partnership include:  City of Bradford MBC, 
Doncaster Children’s Services Trust, Kirklees Council, Leeds City Council, 
Calderdale County Council, North Lincolnshire Council, North East Lincolnshire 
Council, North Yorkshire County Council and Wakefield Council.  Letters of 
Commitment from all these authorities were received at the point of submitting 
the bid and Inter Authority Contracts have been prepared in accordance with the 
DfE template.  The Grant Offer Letter from the Department for Education was 
received on 26 June 2015. Salford University has been procured to deliver the 
14 month post graduate degree programme and the relevant contract terms have 
now been agreed (Appendix 1). The grant will be paid on a monthly basis and 
any underspend on funding as at March 2017 will be repaid to the DfE. 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations: 
Cabinet is recommended to: 

a) Note the contents of this report 
b) Note that the Council has entered into the Grant Funding Agreement 

for the Step Up To Social Work Programme as the lead authority for 
the Yorkshire and Humberside Regional Partnership. 

c)  Approve that Inter Authority Contracts between the authorities of 
the Partnership, which have been agreed in principle, are now 
executed. 

d)  Approve that the Council enters into a contract with Salford 
University for Cohort 4 and approve an extension to that contract for 

Page 22



Page 3 of 10 

a further cohort if the Council should be successful in receiving 
another grant for any future cohort. 

e) Delegate authority to administer the DfE funding awarded to the 
Partnership to Sheffield City Council Assistant Director of Children 
and Families Fieldwork Services 

 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:   attached 
Grant Agreement 
Salford University contract (Appendix 1) 
Inter Authority contract (example) 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN (Appendix 1 is CLOSED i.e. not for 
publication because it contains exempt information under Paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). 
 
 

 
  

Page 23



Page 4 of 10 

Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: M Wassell  
 

Legal Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Ewelina Nidecka/Sarah Bennett/Nadine Wynter 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: Bashir Khan 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 
 

NO 
 

Human Rights Implications 
 

NO 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

NO 
 

Economic Impact 
 

NO 
 

Community Safety Implications 
 

NO 
 

Human Resources Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: Kath Selman 
 

Property Implications 
 

NO 
 

Area(s) Affected 
 

Children and Families statutory fieldwork services 
 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Lead 
 

Jayne Ludlam 
 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee 
 

 
 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    
 

NO 
 

Press Release 
 

NO 
 

Page 24



Page 5 of 10 

REPORT TO CABINET  
 
STEP UP TO SOCIAL WORK PROGRAMME 
 
1.0 SUMMARY 
  
1.1 The Step Up to Social Work programme is a DfE initiative which is grant 

funded to encourage the general public to either start or change their 
career into social work 

  
1.2 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
 
 
1.4 

The national initiative is aimed at resolving recruitment and retention of 
social workers and as a means of training existing graduates to become 
high calibre social workers. 
 
Sheffield City Council has been the lead authority for the Yorkshire and 
Humberside Step up to Social Work Regional Partnership since 2010. 
The number of places hosted by the authorities within the Partnership 
has increased to 50 and therefore the amount of funding to be received 
exceeds £1.5m. 
 
The region has been successful in its bid for funding to support the 
current cohort of 50 students within 10 local authorities to graduate as 
Children and Families social workers  

  
2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE 
  
2.1 Graduates are not guaranteed employment however statistical evidence 

proves that 98% of graduates have been successful in obtaining a job as 
a social worker.  Sheffield CYPF will host 10 students as part of this 
fourth cohort.   

  
2.2 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
2.4 

Upon graduation, the region will have 50 high calibre newly qualified 
social workers to fill vacant social worker posts who have been supported 
through an employer led degree programme. 
 
The assessment centre admissions process includes interviews held by 
foster carers and young people from Sheffield whose comments and 
scores are fed into the regional panels.   
 
Foster carers use this process for their development portfolios and young 
people use their experiences for their CV’s and to develop confidence.  
Many young people have been assisted in gaining employment and/or 
travel opportunities as a result of this experience. 
 

  
3.0 OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY 
  
3.1 Upon graduation in March 2017, there will be 50 additional high calibre 

social workers who will have been part of an employer led university post 
graduate degree course who are ready and trained for employment in 
social work with children and families across the region. 

Page 25



Page 6 of 10 

  
3.2 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
 
 
3.5           

The programme is fully funded by the Department for Education and 
therefore is at no cost to Sheffield City Council or any of the other 9 
authorities in the Partnership. 
 
The Government has agreed to fund 500 places and 18 partnerships 
across the country due to the success of this programme. 
 
The 10 local authorities within the Yorkshire and Humberside Regional 
Partnership work creatively and collaboratively.  This programme has 
been highly successful and as our partnership is the largest in the 
country the DfE ask Sheffield to give advice, support and expertise to 
other new partnerships. 
 
Local authorities within South Yorkshire are currently forming a teaching 
partnership which will be funded by the Department for Education and 
the Department of Health based on the Step up to Social Work model.  
Sheffield will be the lead authority for the new South Yorkshire Teaching 
Partnership as well based on their experience and success of the Step 
Up programme. 

  
4.0 MAIN BODY OF THE REPORT 

 
  
4.1 As the lead authority of the Partnership, Sheffield City Council 

administrates the external DfE grant and makes payments to the 
authorities within the Partnership on behalf of the DfE for bursary 
payments and training and support payments for the number of students 
hosted by each local authority. Sheffield City Council is responsible for 
payment to Salford University for course fees for all 50 students.  A 
trainee contract is drawn up by the host local authority for each student to 
sign prior to commencement of the Post graduate degree in Social Work 
programme.  
 
As the lead authority, Sheffield City Council receives funding to 
administrate the Step Up to Social Work process and to procure an HEI 
to deliver the programme.  Procurement for an HEI to deliver the Cohort 
4 programme took place between July 2014 and January 2015.  
 
Regional Partnership meetings take place on a bi-monthly basis with the 
HEI and are chaired by Sheffield City Council as the lead authority.  
Reports on students’ progress will be submitted to the DfE. 
 
Sheffield submitted a bid to the DfE in February 2015 which was 
successful and the Council has now signed a Grant Funding Agreement 
with the DfE for the next 14 month Post Graduate in Social Work degree 
programme which commences in January 2016..  The Grant Funding 
Agreement is effective from 26 June 2015. Both Salford University and 
local authorities in the Partnership were required to attend the 
admissions assessment centre where the recruitment of 50 students into 
this programme was undertaken. 

Page 26



Page 7 of 10 

  
4.2 The terms of Inter Authority Contracts have now been agreed between 

Sheffield and each authority within the Partnership in accordance with 
the template provided by the DfE.  These follow Letters of Commitment 
received from each partner authority during the bidding process.  These 
contracts are ready to be executed in order to formalise the inter 
authority agreements. 

  
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 

Financial Implications 
 
There are no financial implications to Sheffield City Council to engage in 
this programme. However, all funding must be spent and accounted for 
by the end of the financial year in 2017; any underspend must be repaid 
to the DfE.  
 
The value of the DFE grant is £1.7 million. It will be paid in equal 
instalments and must be spent by the end of March 2017. Any unspent 
grant will be repaid back to the DFE. Failure to comply with the terms and 
conditions of the grant will mean that all or part of the grant will have to 
be repaid. The latest grant agreement terms and conditions for the grant 
have not yet been finalised, but there are not expected to be any material 
changes from previous years funding allocations. 
 
Legal implications 
 
Sheffield, on behalf of the Partnership has procured Salford University to 
deliver the post graduate programme.  DfE funding includes payment for 
the procurement of an HEI. 
 
Procurement has been carried out in accordance with Sheffield City 
Council Contract Standing Orders and the Contract Award approval was 
signed off at the end of 2014 to allow for the bidding process with the 
DfE.  The contract itself has been awarded to Salford University. 
 
The purpose of the Inter Authority Contracts is to safeguard the 
relationships between the local authorities within the Partnership and to 
support the role of Sheffield City Council as the lead authority, with the 
responsibility for entering into a number of contracts on behalf of the 
Partnership. These contracts are not legally binding between the parties 
until they are signed and sealed. 

  
5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
5.1 Sheffield City Council has been the lead authority for the Step up to 

Social Work programme since its inception at a pilot stage in 2010.  The 
Regional Partnership is the largest in the country and is highly praised by 
the DfE for its success.  The DfE has advised prospective new 
partnerships to contact Sheffield for expert guidance and the lead Step 
Up co-ordinator from Sheffield visited Somerset and Dorset in March.  
This led to the South West forming a new partnership and they continue 
to seek guidance from Sheffield. 

Page 27



Page 8 of 10 

 
Sheffield City Council is currently participating in a DfE longitudinal 
national study of graduates from past Step Up Cohorts and was recently 
invited to be interviewed by Consultant Economists who have been 
commissioned by the DfE to audit the value of different social work 
degree programmes. 
 
Sheffield City Council wishes to continue to act as the lead authority for  
Step up to Social Work within the Yorkshire and Humberside region as it 
raises the profile of the authority not only for the workforce across the 
region but nationally.   
 
Sheffield City Council has recently been successful in the bid for the 
Early Adopter phase of Teaching Partnerships for the South Yorkshire 
region.  22 Partnerships bid nationally; these were shortlisted to 8 with a 
requirement for a further application which resulted in Sheffield City 
Council being one of the final 4 successful bidders.  This new partnership 
will allow Sheffield City Council to contribute to the future of social work 
education and it is believed that the bid was successful due to the 
expertise gained from the Step Up to Social Work programme.   
 
 

  
6.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Step Up to Social Work programme is a national initiative which is 
wholly funded by the Department for Education by way of a grant.  This 
funding includes a bursary payment for each successful student on the 
degree programme, funding of the University course, funding for training 
and supervision of each student whilst they are placed in their host 
authority across the region and administration of funding by the lead 
authority.  
 
The programme has been running since 2010 and has flagship status 
both regionally and nationally. The Yorkshire and Humberside Regional 
Partnership is the largest of the 18 national partnerships participating in 
the Step up to Social Work programme. This initiative has produced 108 
high calibre graduates since its initiation and 98% of these graduates 
have been successful in gaining employment as social workers in 
authorities across this region.  This initiative has proven to be highly 
successful in resolving recruitment difficulties in social work in children 
and families.   
 
This year the DfE have approved funding for the Yorkshire and 
Humberside region to host 50 students which means that external 
funding awarded will be £1.7m for the 14 month programme which will 
start in January 2016. Admissions recruitment took place in June/July 
2015.  Sheffield is the lead authority and acts as the broker for the grant 
funding with the responsibility of distribution of funding to each authority 
as directed by the Department of Education and oversees the success of 
the programme. 

Page 28



Page 9 of 10 

 
6.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.0 
 
7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.0 

 
The other nine local authorities in the Partnership include:  City of 
Bradford MBC, Doncaster Children’s Services Trust, Kirklees Council, 
Leeds City Council, Calderdale County Council, North Lincolnshire 
Council, North East Lincolnshire Council, North Yorkshire County Council 
and Wakefield Council.  Letters of Commitment from all these authorities 
were received at the point of submitting the bid and Inter Authority 
Contracts have been prepared in accordance with the DfE template.  The 
Grant Offer Letter from the Department for Education was received on 26 
June 2015.  . Salford University has been procured to deliver the 14 
month post graduate degree programme and the relevant contract terms 
have now been agreed (Appendix 1). The grant will be paid on a monthly 
basis and any underspend on funding as at March 2017 will be repaid to 
the DfE. 
 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 
 
Appendix 1 attached to this report is presented as an exempt item 
because it contains exempt information under paragraph 3 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) i.e. it contains 
information relating to the financial or business affairs of the Council.  In 
considering this exemption the author of the report has decided that in all 
the circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information, 
because it might weaken the City Council’s position in a competitive 
environment in relation to any future bidding process for DfE grants in the 
future. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

  
 Cabinet is recommended to: 

 
a) Note the contents of this report 

 
b) Note that the Council has entered into the Grant Funding 
Agreement for the Step Up To Social Work Programme as the 
lead authority for the Yorkshire and Humberside Regional 
Partnership. 

 

 
c) Approve that Inter Authority Contracts between the authorities of 
the Partnership, which have been agreed in principle, are now 
executed. 

 
d) Approve that the Council enters into a contract with Salford 
University for Cohort 4 and approve an extension to that contract 
for a further cohort if the Council should be successful in receiving 
another grant for any future cohort. 

 

Page 29



Page 10 of 10 

e) Delegate authority to administer the DfE funding awarded to the 
Partnership to Sheffield City Council Assistant Director of 
Children’s Fieldwork Services 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 
 

 
Author   Dorothy Smith 
Job Title Senior HR consultant 
Date   14/8/15 

 

Page 30



 1

            

            

          

 2 St Paul's Place 
125 Norfolk Street  

Sheffield  
S1 2FJ 

 26 June 2015

Dorothy Smith           Via Email  

Sheffield City Council 
Service Improvement team Children and Families 
Moorfoot, Floor 7, North Wing 
Sheffield 
S1 4PL 
            

Dear Dorothy 
 
Grant Offer Letter - Step Up to Social Work Programme 2015-16 
Ref: CSDSD2/2015/YH - Sheffield City Council- Yorkshire and 
Humberside Regional Partnership 
 
This Grant Offer is made between: 

 
(1) The Secretary of State for Education and 

 
(2)  Sheffield City Council, acting on behalf of the Yorkshire and 

Humberside Regional Partnership 

 
This letter confirms that a grant will be awarded for your regional partnership’s 
participation in cohort 4 of the Step Up to Social Work Programme to the 
values detailed in Annex H and such grant is subject to the Department for 
Education’s Grant Terms and Conditions1.  
 
For the purposes of this grant only, the Grant Offer Letter and the payment 
mechanism [the Portal],fulfil the functions in the following clauses of the 
Terms and Conditions. 
 

• Section 4 - Amount of grant re subsequent year: this is set out at annex 
H  

                                            
1
 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/grant-funding-agreement-terms-and-conditions 

Page 31



 2

• Section 5.1 - 5.3: payment arrangements: payment will be made via the 
Portal 

• Section 7.1 - progress reporting: this will be made via the Portal 

• Section 12 - forecast of expenditure: the Portal shows the number of 
trainees requiring funding 

• Section 21 - Accounts: the Portal provides a statement of account  

• Section 23 - exit plan:  the Portal tracks the number of trainees on the 
programme 

 
Any grant paid by the Secretary of State will be paid pursuant to section 14, 
subsection 2, of the Education Act 2002 and section 67, subsection 4b, of the 
Care Standards Act 2000, and will accordingly be paid only in respect of 
approved expenditure incurred by Sheffield City Council for the purpose of the 
funded activities. This letter must be read in conjunction with the relevant 
annexes: 
 
Annex A - Acceptance of Grant Offer and effective date  

Annex B - Bank account details  

Annex E - Details of Grant Allocation for Cohort 4 of Step Up to Social  
  Work 

Annex F - List of Objectives for which the grant is being paid for Cohort 4 
  of Step Up to Social Work 

Annex G -  Annual Certification of Expenditure (external auditor /                 
accountant’s report arrangements) 

Annex H - Grant Payment schedule for Cohort 4 of Step Up to Social  
  Work (2015-16). 

 
Please note that any funding available through this grant can only be 
accessed by nominated officers and in accordance with the parameters 
detailed in the project specific annexes below. The Department reserves the 
right to review payment methodology over the grant period. 
 

To accept this offer of 2015-16 funding, please sign this Grant Offer Letter 
(Annex A)  and return both an electronic and hard copy, no later than Friday 
17 July 2015 to the Department for Education (DfE), by email to: 
socialworkreform.sg@education.gsi.gov.uk and hard copy posted to: Sarah 
Allen, Department for Education, 5th Floor, 2 St Paul’s Place,125 Norfolk 
Street, Sheffield S1 2FJ. 
 
Please ensure that you retain a copy of the signed document for your records. 
 

Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
 
 

Almudena Lara 
Deputy Director, Children’s Social Care Reform and Innovation  

Page 32



Page 33



 4

Annex B 

 

Bank account details 

Information required by the Department to make payment of grant for 
the activities stated in the offer letter. 

 

Contact details for Sheffield City Council to whom payment should be 
sent 
 

Organisation name:  
 

Address:  
 

Post Code:   
 

Telephone no: 
 

Remittance  
E-mail address:  
 

Bank account details 
 

Account name:  
 

Bank address:  
 

Account no:  
 

Sort code:       

 
Bank name:    
 
 

Signed by a person authorised to sign on behalf of Sheffield City  
Council/Yorkshire and Humberside Regional Partnership 
 

Signature  
 
Name (please print): DEBORAH MERCER 
 
Position in organisation:  ASSISTANT DIRECTOR CHILDREN AND 
FAMILIES 
 
Date: 26/6/15 
 

  

Page 34



 5

Annex E 

 
Details of Grant Allocations - Step Up to Social Work Programme 2015-
16 - Ref: CSDSD2/2015/YH- Sheffield City Council - Yorkshire and 
Humberside Regional Partnership 
  
Cohort four 
 
On 10 June 2014, The Department for Education confirmed its intention to run 
a fourth cohort of the Step Up to Social Work programme.  The recruitment 
process commenced on Monday 16 March 2015 and will run through to mid-
November 2015 concluding with the offer by regional partnerships and 
acceptance from successful candidates of places on the course.  Candidate 
training on the programme commences January 2016.   
 
The programme provides an accelerated entry route into social work for high-
achieving graduates and career changers. SUSW is delivered through the 
development of a bespoke work-based 14 month postgraduate diploma 
programme, led by groups of local authorities working in regional partnerships 
and contracting with HEIs. Award of the diploma enables candidates to apply 
to the Health and Care Professions Council to register as a qualified social 
worker. The scheme will continue to target high calibre individuals who 
already have experience of working with children and young people, and who 
want to train as social workers. Evaluation of previous cohorts shows an 
average 80% conversion rate to social worker posts on completion of the 
programme and very positive views about the quality of the training.  
 
DfE provides funding through the lead authority for the partnership to organise 
and help fund all aspects of training and provide each trainee with a bursary 
of at least £19,833.00 over the 14 months of their training. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 35



 6

Annex F 
 

 
Cohort 4: list of objectives for which the grant is being paid for the Step Up to 
Social Work Programme. 
 
 

Objective/Activity 
Date to be completed 

by/between 

Successful applications available to 
be accessed/requested by RPs for 
pre-assessment centre stage 
(electronic/ paper format) 

23 March –  

June 2015 

Assessment centres  22 June - 17 July 2015 

Successful applicants invited to 
confirm place on course  

July 2015 

RPs perform necessary checks on 
successful applicants 

From late July 2015 

To supply an outline programme for 
Step Up to Social Work which 
outlines how and where the 
Knowledge and Skills have been 
embedded into the academic and 
practice curricula and how the 
regional partnership intends to 
monitor that this is working 
successfully.  

31 October 2015 

Contractor manages the reserve 
pool of candidates to fill as many 
places as possible 

July-November 2015 

Partnerships confirm HCPC 
approval for programme 

By November 2015 latest 

To provide a description of the 
placements offered to Step Up to 
Social Work Programme trainees 
and the host organisations and a 
confirmation of at least one and 
preferably two fulfil the requirements 
of a statutory placement* 

By end of November 2015 

Step Up to Social Work programme 
starts 

January 2016 

*We define statutory placements as those that:  

• take place in a local authority setting;and 

• involve work on S17 and S47 cases (under the Children Act 1989);and 

• require case records to be updated by the student, under appropriate 
supervision. 

Page 36



 7

 

Annual Certification of Expenditure       Annex G  

 
Annex G - Statement of Grant Usage 
 

* This section is an alternative to Annex G (i) and is to be used where the 
grant recipient is a Local Authority or maintained school.  
 
Notes for completion: 
 

1. The Grant Recipient shall prepare a Certification of Grant Usage for the Grant 

Period [Insert start and end dates]. 

 

2. This comprises three parts:  

a) Certificate of Grant Usage. 

b) Statement of Expenditure; and  

c) Report confirming Delivery. 

 

3. The Grant Recipient shall submit the forms to the Department no later than 

28, twenty eight days from the end of the Grant Period. 

 
a) Certificate of Grant Usage 
 
 

Name of organisation  Insert Name of Grant Recipient 

  

Approved Project title Insert Project name 

  

 
 

•  The total Grant amount of £insert figure was exclusively used for the 
purposes set out in the agreement between the Grant Recipient and the 
Department, dated insert date of our letter. 

•  A report on the activities funded by the Grant Funding will be submitted 
to the Department, confirming that the grant outputs have been delivered 
to a satisfactory standard and the expected benefits that have accrued or 
will accrue. The report will be provided within 28 days after the 
completion of the funding of the insert project name. 

•  A final financial statement detailing the use of the Grant Funding will be 
provided in section b – Statement of Expenditure. This is a summary 
statement of all receipts and expenditures connected with the above 
Project. The organisation’s financial systems that recorded the income 
and expenditure of this Grant have provided sufficient internal control for 
the purposes of this certification. 

Signature  

 

Name  Date  

 

Page 37



 8

Position  

 

Organisation 
address 

 

  Postcode 

Initialled by Organisation’s Chief Financial Officer/ 
Auditor 

 

  

Page 38



 9

Annex H 
  
 

Grant Payment Schedule: Step Up to Social Work Programme. Ref: 
CSDSD2/2015/YH - Sheffield City Council - Yorkshire and Humberside 
Regional Partnership 
 
Financial year 2015-16 
 
Cohort four  
 
Step Up to Social Work will run as part of the Programme Grant Agreement 
between DfE and local authorities.  DfE funding will be allocated through the 
lead local authority of each regional partnership. 
 

• Funding to each regional partnership for establishing and administering 
 the regional partnership of local authorities and their selected HEI 
 provide : 

 

� £35,000 (2015 – 16 only)  

 

• Funding made to each regional partnership for making delivery 
arrangements with an HEI provider. 

 

� £10,000 (2015 – 16 only)  

 

• This will be paid in a single instalment upon return of the following: 

 

o A signed copy of the 2015-16 grant agreement 
o A copy of the signed agreement between local authorities in 

your partnership for cohort 4 (E.g. inter-LA contract or 
memorandum of understanding) 

o A copy of the signed contract between the regional partnership 
and the HEI(s) for cohort 4  

 

• Funding of £33,250.00 per candidate, which consists of: 
 

� £19,833 for trainee bursary 

� £1,750 for support and development of supervisors 

� £11,667 for HEI training delivery costs.  

 

The funding below will be made in monthly instalments upon commencement 
of the January 2016 cohort, to the amounts set out in the table below .  
Please note that this grant agreement only covers funding available in 
2015-16.  Subject to the availability of funding, a  formal grant variation 
will be issued in due course to cover financial year 2016-17: 
 

Page 39



 10 

Per candidate costs 
For full 14 

month course 

15 Monthly 
payments per 
candidate for 

January 16 - March 
2017 inclusive 

Funding to deliver a 
bursary of £17k pa 

£19,833.00 £1322.20 

Funding of £11,667 
per trainee to allow the 

local authorities to 
procure the course 

from their chosen HEI 

£11,667.00 £777.80 

Funding of £1,750 per 
trainee to cover the 
supervision and 

support that hosting 
authorities provide 

during the programme 

£1,750.00 £116.67 

SUBTOTALS £33,250.00 £2,216.67 

 
The first payment will be distributed following the registration of candidates on 
the portal (or as notified if reviewed), in January 2016.  The remaining 
instalments will be released when lead authorities certify candidates that are 
still on their courses at the monthly payment points.  The final instalment will 
be paid in March 2017.  If a candidate withdraws from the course their funding 
ends. 
 
Lead local authorities engaged with the project will be prompted to confirm the 
participation of their candidates at monthly intervals from January 2016, via 
the portal (or as notified if reviewed), to activate their funding payments. 
 
Cohort 4 of Step Up to Social Work will start in January 2016 and  run to 
March 2017.   
 
Funding will also be reliant on Regional Partnerships providing quarterly 
reports in an agreed template, including the following points: 

• Names of candidates withdrawn from the programme and the reason why 

• Details regarding placement positions for all candidates 

• Modules completed by candidates 

• Any issues of concern 
 
At the end of the cohort 4 programme, regional partnerships are required to 
provide the Department for Education (when prompted) details of graduates 
who have completed the programme and if known, the number of Step Up 
graduates who are employed within Child and Family Social Work. 

Regional Partnerships are required to inform the Department for Education of 
any changes to the leadership structure within partnerships. 
 
Organisations claiming the grant for Step Up to Social Work do so on the 

Page 40



 11 

understanding that they may be contacted from time to time by DfE or its 
agents to assist with any evaluative work being undertaken on the 
programme. 
 
Payments are made into the bank account details submitted as part of Annex 
B to the Department for Education by the lead local authorities of each 
Regional Partnership. 
 
Please sign this grant agreement for 2015-16 and return it to 
socialworkreform.sg@education.gsi.gov.uk no later than Friday 17 July 
2015. 
 
For further information regarding the project please visit  
https://www.gov.uk/step-up-to-social-work-information-for-applicants 
 
or if this does not answer your question contact a member of the team at 
socialworkreform.sg@education.gsi.gov.uk 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Form 2 – Executive Report                                                          January 2014 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Report of:   Eugene Walker 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Report to:   Cabinet 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    02 October 2015 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2015/16 – As 

at 31st August 2015 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Dave Phillips 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Key Decision:  YES 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reason Key Decision: Expenditure/savings over £500,000    
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: 
This report provides the month 5 monitoring statement on the City Council’s 
Revenue and Capital Budget for 2015/16. 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reasons for Recommendations: 
To formally record changes to the Revenue Budget and gain Member approval 
for changes in line with Financial Regulations. 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations: Please refer to paragraph 19 of the main report for 

the recommendations. 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers: 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
 

Cabinet Report 
 

 
Agenda Item 10

Page 129



Page 2 of 2 

Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Dave Phillips 
 

Legal Implications 
 

NO 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 
 

NO 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 
 

NO 
 

Human Rights Implications 
 

NO 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

YES/NO 
 

Economic Impact 
 

NO 
 

Community Safety Implications 
 

NO 
 

Human Resources Implications 
 

NO 
 

Property Implications 
 

NO 
 

Area(s) Affected 
 

 
 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Lead 
 

 
 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    
 

NO 
 

Press Release 
 

NO 
 

 

Page 130



2015/16        Budget Monitoring – Month 5 

REVENUE BUDGET & CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING AS AT 31st 
August 2015 

 

Purpose of the Report 
 

1. This report provides the Month 5 monitoring statement on the City Council’s Revenue 

Budget and Capital Programme for August 2015.  The first section covers Revenue 

Budget Monitoring and the Capital Programmes are reported from paragraph 13.  

 
REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 
 

Summary 

2. At month 3 the overall Council position was a forecast overspend of £13.4m.  The 

position at month 5 shows an improvement of £2.4m, with a forecast potential 

overspend of £11.0m to the year end.  It should be stressed that this is the forecast 

position before the delivery of various agreed savings for the year and other mitigating 

actions are taken. The position is summarised in the table below. 

 

 

 

3. Although the latest position shows what is currently believed to be the worst case 

scenario, a significant amount of work will be required to bring forecast expenditure into 

line with budget.  The forecast position would be an unsustainable outturn when 

compared to a General Fund reserve of £11.2m.  

 

4. EMT have discussed the latest position in Place, where the forecast overspend as at 
Month 5 (£5.8m) shows very little improvement from the position reported as at Month 3 
(£6.2m).  As a result of EMT’s discussions, the Executive Director for Place has agreed 
to put additional measures into immediate effect in order to bring down the forecast 
overspend significantly to a more manageable level. With these measures and other 
actions already underway, then the overall forecast overspend would reduce to around 
£5.0m.  

 

5. In terms of the month 5 overall forecast position of £11.0m overspend, the key reasons 
are: 

Portfolio Forecast FY FY Movement

Outturn Budget Variance from Month 

£000s £000s £000s

CYPF                          71,245 69,311 1,934 ó

COMMUNITIES                   159,366 155,954 3,412 ò

PLACE 161,298 155,451 5,847 ò

POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMUNICATION 2,935 2,494 441 ò

RESOURCES                     55,893 56,437 (544) ò

CORPORATE                     (439,762) (439,647) (115) ó

GRAND TOTAL 10,975 (0) 10,975 ò

Page 131



2015/16        Budget Monitoring – Month 5 

· Children, Young People and Families are showing a forecast overspend of 

£1.9m. This is due to slippage in the delivery of planned staffing reductions of 

£312k, £972k due to the recruitment of additional social workers, £883k due to 

delays in savings, £219k reflecting an increase in unaccompanied children and 

£856k in increased demand pressures within Direct Payments and Short Breaks 

services. These increases in expenditure are partly offset by a reduction in 

expenditure of £514k on contact contracts, £250k on legal fees and £735k due a 

reduction in Placement demand. 

· Communities are showing a forecast overspend of £3.4m. This is largely due to 

an overspend of £3.7m in Learning Disabilities, Provider Services, Long term 

Support and Contributions to Care. There is also a £971k overspend in 

Commissioned Mental Health Services offset by a £756k reduction in expenditure 

in Housing Related Support Contracts.   

· Place are showing a forecast overspend of £5.9m. This is largely due to delays in 

delivering planned cost reductions on the waste contract of £2.5m and the Streets 

Ahead Contract of £2.8m. There are also emerging cost pressures from increased 

household waste volumes of £600k and reduced income from the sale of materials 

of £700k. These overspends are partly offset by reductions in spending across a 

number of areas within the Culture and Environment Service of 495k.  

· Resources are showing a forecast reduction in expenditure of £544k. This is 

primarily due to the recovery of high value over payments in Housing Benefit 

£777k. 

· Policy, Performance & Communication are showing a forecast reduction in 

expenditure of £441k. This is primarily due to a delay in the advertising contract 

resulting in an underachievement of income.   

 

6. The main variations since Month 3 are: 

· Communities are forecasting an improvement of £558k since month 3. This is 

mainly due to reduced expenditure on staffing and additional income achieved in 

Business Strategy of £181k and delays to projects in Commissioning which have 

saved £391k. The project delays in Commissioning are grant funded and subject to 

a carry forward request detailed in paragraph 6 .These savings have been partly 

offset by increased expenditure due to demand in Care and Support of 225k.  

· Place are forecasting an improvement of £332k, which is due predominantly to a 

£233k improvement as a result of forecast cost reductions in the Highways 

Department. There have also been small improvements in the Sports Trust of 

Page 132



2015/16        Budget Monitoring – Month 5 

£100k due to a recent rating revaluation however half of this saving is offset by 

lower Non Domestic Rate income for the Council. 

· Resources are forecasting an improvement of £960k, which is mainly due to 

increased income forecasts across a number of areas in the portfolio. This income 

includes £77k from Fleet Management, £124k for Commercial Services traded 

activity and £303k additional income received in Commercial Services (savings). 

There has also been a budget adjustment of £220k in Facilities Management in 

respect of Howden House following review of the PFI model and increased 

Business Rates charge.  

· Policy, Performance & Communication are forecasting an improvement of 469k, 

which is mainly due to realignment of budgets as part of a review of in year cuts to 

Public Health funding. 

 

Collection Fund 

7. Collection Fund monitoring will be reported in month 6 and include the second quarter 

results. Appendix 4 has been retained for the collection fund as blank for continuity for 

future months. 

 

Public Health  

8. The Public Health ring-fenced grant is currently forecasting a potential £627k 

underspend.  The main reasons for the reduction in spending is a direct response to 

government consultations on in-year cuts to the Public Health grant and therefore the 

likely need to cope with grant reductions in 2015/16. Further details of the forecast 

outturn position on Public Health is reported in Appendix 2.  

 

Housing Revenue Account 

9. The 2015/16 budget assumes an in year surplus of £10.9m will be generated which will 

be used to fund the HRA Capital Investment Programme. In accordance with the HRA’s 

financial strategy any further in- year revenue surplus / savings generated by the 

account will be used to provide further funding for the future HRA Capital Investment 

Programme. 

 

10. As at month 5 the full year outturn position is a forecast reduction in expenditure of 

£1.6m.  Further details of the HRA forecast outturn can be found in Appendix 3 of this 

report.   

 
 

Page 133



2015/16        Budget Monitoring – Month 5 

New Homes Bonus Fund 

  

  

£m 

Income Reserves as at 1/04/15 -6.0 

  

0.0 

 

Declared 15/16 NHB Grant -7.3 

 

Total Income -13.3 

   Expenditure 2015/16 Spend to date at Month 5 1.2 

 

Forecast to Year End 3.7 

 

Future Years' Commitments 2.1 

 

Total Expenditure 7.0 

   

 

Funds Available  for Investment -6.3 

   
 

11. The 2015/16 New Homes Bonus grant has been advised by Central Government at 

£7.3m.  Officers are currently drafting proposals on worthwhile projects to which the 

available funds can be applied.  These will be brought forward to Members for approval 

in due course. 

 

12. Expenditure remains in line with previous forecasts although the timing may change as 

approximately £0.1m of capital spend looks likely to slip into 2016/17. 

 

Capital Summary 

 

13. At the end of August 2015, the end of year position forecasts a variance of £28.4m (8%) 

below the approved Capital Programme, which represents an additional £5.6m to that 

reported in month 4. Project managers are forecasting to deliver a capital programme of 

£270.1m which is £3.9m lower than month 4 forecast. 

 

14. Further details of the Capital Programme monitoring and projects for approval are 

reported in Appendices 5 to 5.2. 

Implications of this Report 

 

Financial implications 

15. The primary purpose of this report is to provide Members with information on the City 

Council’s Budget Monitoring position for 2015/16, and as such it does not make any 

recommendations which have additional financial implications for the City Council. 

Page 134



2015/16        Budget Monitoring – Month 5 

 

Equal opportunities implications  

16. There are no specific equal opportunity implications arising from the recommendations 

in this report.   

 

Legal implications  

17. There are no specific legal implications arising from the recommendations in this report.   

 

Property implications 

18. Although this report deals, in part, with the Capital Programme, it does not, in itself, 

contain any property implications, nor are there any arising from the recommendations 

in this report. 
 

Recommendations 
 

19. Members are asked to: 

 

(a) Note the updated information and management actions provided by this report on 

the 2015/16 Revenue Budget position. 

 
(b) In relation to the Capital Programme: 

(i) Approve the proposed additions to the Capital Programme listed in Appendix 

5.1 and 5.2, including the procurement strategies and delegations of authority 

to the Director of Commercial Services or nominated Officer, as appropriate,  

to award the necessary contracts following stage approval by Capital 

Programme Group; 

(ii) Approve the proposed variations, deletions and slippage in Appendix 5.1 and 

5.2;  

and note; 

(iii) The latest position on the Capital Programme including the current level of 

delivery; and note 

(iv)  The variations approved under delegated authority provisions.  

Page 135



2015/16        Budget Monitoring – Month 5 

Reasons for Recommendations 

20. To record formally changes to the Revenue Budget and the Capital Programme and 

gain Member approval for changes in line with Financial Regulations and to reset the 

capital programme in line with latest information. 
 

Alternative options considered 

21. A number of alternative courses of action are considered as part of the process 

undertaken by Officers before decisions are recommended to Members.  The 

recommendations made to Members represent what Officers believe to be the best 

options available to the Council, in line with Council priorities, given the constraints on 

funding and the use to which funding is put within the Revenue Budget and the Capital 

Programme. 

 
Dave Phillips 
Interim Director of Finance 

Page 136



                 Appendix 1 

Portfolio Revenue Budget Monitoring Reports 2015/16  

– As at 31 August 2015 

 

Children Young People and Families (CYPF) Portfolio 

Summary 

1. As at month 5 the Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of an overspend of 

£1.9 million, which is consistent with the month 3 position. The key reasons for 

the forecast outturn position are: 

· Business Strategy & Children’s Commissioning Unit - £47k forecast 

reduction in spend. This includes £29k forecast reduction in spend in 

Children’s Commissioning Unit, as a result of staff savings in the planned 

MER.  

· Children and Families – £1.9m forecast overspend.   

Over spending areas are:  

· Fieldwork Services - Management and Business Support £312k due 

to delay in the services’ MER, Fieldwork Service Areas and 

Permanence and Throughcare £972k net overspend mainly due to 

the recruitment of additional social workers, Multi-systemic Therapy 

£243k due delays in anticipated savings, there is also an overspend 

of £219k reflecting an increase in unaccompanied children. These 

have been partially offset by a £514k ongoing saving on Contact 

Contracts as a result of specific action being taken to reduce costs 

and a £250k reduction in spend on legal fees, which is as a result the 

ongoing work between the service and Legal services to reduce 

costs through more efficient working practices. 

· Direct Payments and short breaks - £856k due to increased demand 

pressures, this also includes £250k as a result of the delay in 

anticipated savings due in year. 

· Provider Services –due to delays in anticipated savings on the 

integrated approach to service delivery between Health and Social 

Care, £271k,   and Youth Justice £119k. 

· Early Intervention & Prevention - £91k because of a reduced 

expected contribution of £250k from the CCG towards Early 

Intervention and Prevention.  

Areas of forecast reduction in spending are: 

Page 137



                 Appendix 1 

· Placements - £735k due to the assumption that funds set aside to 

fund a potential increase in Special Guardianship Orders (£400k) 

may not be required in 2015/16 and that the longer term positive 

trend in Placement numbers and unit costs will drive spend down by 

year end.  

· Inclusion and Learning Services – £93k forecast overspend due to £27k 

overspend in Vulnerable Groups as a result of a shortfall of £64k against the 

additional income built into business planning, which is partially offset by 

staff savings and £27k overspend in Outdoor Education due to additional 

repairs and maintenance costs. Pupil Admissions is also overspending by 

£41k reflecting a reduction in anticipated traded income against budget.  

· Lifelong Learning, Skills and Communities – £23k forecast overspend, 

£181k relating to the Training Units, due to an unexpected reduction in 

government grant funding, which is being partially offset by savings from the 

MER which is in progress. This is being offset by £83k net under spend on 

Youth services, as a result of £69k staff vacancies, additional rental income 

of £45k and overspend in supplies and services budget of £46k in the 

Internal Community Youth Teams. Strategic Support is forecasting an 

underspend of £74k, due to staff vacancies and activities that have now 

ceased. 

Financial Results 
 
 

Service Forecast FY FY Movement 

  Outturn Budget Variance 
from 

Month  

  £000s £000s £000s   

BUSINESS STRATEGY              2,401  2,448  (47) ó 

CHILDREN & FAMILIES            59,825  57,962  1,863  ñ 

INCLUSION & LEARNING SERVICES  (17) (111) 94  ó 

LIFELONG LEARN, SKILL & 
COMMUN 9,036  9,013  23  

 

ò 

GRAND TOTAL 71,245  69,312  1,933  ó 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 138



                 Appendix 1 

DSG 

2. The following is a summary of the variance position on DSG budgets at month 

5: 

 Month 3 
£000 

Month 4 
£000 

Month 5 
£000 

Business Strategy (49) (37) (65) 

Children and Families (121) (109) (46) 

Inclusion and Learning Services (5) (67) (62) 

Lifelong Learning, skills and Communities (0) 0 0 

 (175) (213) (173) 

 

Commentary 

3. The following commentary concentrates on the changes from the month 3 

position. 

Business Strategy 

4. As at month 5, Business Strategy is currently forecasting an under spend of 

£47k (shown in the table above) relating to cash limit and a reduction in 

spending of £65k on DSG.   

5. The improvement from month 3 of £86k in cash limit and £16k in DSG is due 

mainly to an improvement in the forecast position on children’s commissioning 

budgets reflecting staff savings from the planned achieving change. 

Children and Families  

6. As at month 5, Children and Families is currently forecasting a £1.9m 

overspend (shown in the table above) relating to cash limit and a £46k 

underspend on DSG. This is an increase in spend of £400k on cash limit and 

an increase in spend of £75k in DSG. 

· The key reasons for the movement from month 3 is increases in 

Placement budget spend which reflects the additional costs from 

additional residential placements and pressures from Leaving Care.  

Inclusion and Learning Service 

7. As at month 5, Inclusion and Learning Service is currently forecasting £94k 

overspend (shown in the table above) relating to cash limit and a £62k 

reduction in spend on DSG. 

Page 139



                 Appendix 1 

8. The movement in the cash limit position is £26k from month 3, this reflects a 

reduction in forecast traded income on Pupil Admissions and an improvement 

of £70k on SEN budgets being realigned which increases the amount met from 

DSG. . 

9. The DSG has improved by £57k, this is a £50k adverse movement on the SEN 

budgets, as detailed above. However this was offset by an improvement of 

£50k saving being identified in Children Missing from Education and £50k 

improvement in Inclusion and Learning Services due to staff savings and a 

£20k reduction in planned commissions. 

Lifelong Learning Skills and Communities 

10. As at month 5, Lifelong Learning Skills and Communities is currently 

forecasting a £23k overspend (shown in the table above) relating to cash limit 

and a balanced DSG position. 

11. The £322k improvement from month 3 in the cash limit position is mainly due to 

£211k improvement in the training units, this reflects the maximisation of grant 

income for these activities. This is one-off income in 2015/16 but the planned 

MER will ensure that the budgets are balanced going forward and £75k 

improvement in Strategic Support, this reflect savings being identified in staffing 

and a planned reduction in activities. 

12. The DSG position is consistent with the month 3 position. 

 
Place Portfolio 

 

Summary 

13. As at month 5 the Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn overspend of 

£5.8m, an improvement of £0.3m from the month 3 position. The key reasons 

for the forecast outturn position are: 

· Business Strategy & Regulation: £3.8m over budget largely due to 

delays in delivering the planned cost reductions to the waste contract as 

a result of protracted negotiations with the provider (£2.5m) and 

emerging cost pressures from increased household waste volumes 

(£0.6m) and reductions in income from the sale of materials due to 

falling market prices (£0.7m) caused by movements in the global 

economy. 

· Regen & Development Services: £2.2m over budget largely due to 

delays in delivering the planned cost reductions in the Streets Ahead 

Page 140



                 Appendix 1 

programme (net £2.8m), less a continuation of sustained improvement in 

Highways and Highway Network Management (£0.9m), plus additional 

staffing and income pressures forecast largely within the Transport and 

Parking Services activity (£0.3m). 

14. The key reason for the net £0.3m improvement since month 3 is :- 

· Regeneration & Development Services : forecast cost reductions in 

the Highways Department. 

15. It should be noted that at the Place Leadership Team meeting on 18 June 2015 

Directors approved a Recovery Plan to significantly improve upon and mitigate 

the £8.5m forecast overspend reported at Month 2. This included implementing 

an estimated £2.8m of immediate actions, together with Directors reviewing key 

areas of employee and discretionary spend with a view to raising a further 

estimated £1.9m savings in 15-16 which will carry through to future years. 

Financial Results 

 

Commentary 

16. The following commentary concentrates on the key risks to the current forecast 

and changes from the month 3 position. 

Business Strategy & Regulation 

17. The forecast for this activity is £3.8m over budget for the reasons identified in 

para 4 above. This remains broadly in line with the month 3 position However, it 

should be noted that should the current trend in market price for sale of 

materials not begin to stabilise, the current forecast may still be at risk. 

Capital & Major Projects  

18. The forecast for this activity is £337k over budget, broadly in line with the month 

3 position. 

Page 141



                 Appendix 1 

19. The forecast position largely reflects income pressures within the markets 

service, largely attributable to the Moor market (£0.5m).  This arises from the 

market being only 70% let as Traders have surrendered tenancies due to 

difficult trading conditions.  The low viability of the market businesses has led to 

a high level of bad debt. There may be further risk here if stall lettings cannot 

be held at current levels, or rent collection levels don’t improve. The business 

model for the market is currently under review balancing lower rents against the 

need for more flexibility in location to ensure let space is maximised. External 

agents have been engaged to promote the letting of vacant stalls and recover 

monies due to the Council. 

Creative Sheffield  

20. The forecast for this activity is £34k over budget, an adverse movement of £34k 

since month 3.The adverse movement arises within the City Development 

service where the key risk is around securing the funding of the £0.5m salary 

cost of the team. At this stage only around 50% of this target has been secured 

with approved bids. 

 

Culture & Environment  

21. The forecast for this activity is £495k under budget, broadly in line with the 

month 3 position. 

22. The overall forecast position largely reflects a continuation of prior year 

improvement trends that are forecast to continue within the Bereavement 

Services, Parks and City Centre Management activities (£0.3m). A further cost 

reduction has arisen within the Sports Trusts due to recent rating revaluation on 

a number of premises (£0.1m) although half of this saving will be offset by 

lower Non Domestic Rate income to the Council.  

Regeneration & Development Services 

23. The forecast for this activity is £2.2m over budget as identified in para 4 above, 

which represents a £257k improvement on the month 3 position due to 

.forecast cost reductions in the Highways Department. 

24. The forecast position is largely due to delays in delivering the planned cost 

reductions in the Streets Ahead programme (£4.7m), less estimated (largely 

one-off) cost reductions (£1.9m), giving a net pressure of £2.8m. Whilst work 

has continued to develop options, a number of these have not progressed as 

originally planned due to Treasury concerns about the proposals being 

incompatible with the principles of the PFI contract or an unacceptable level of 

risk transfer to the Council.     

Page 142



                 Appendix 1 

25. This is being offset to some extent by a continuation of sustained improvements 

in the Highways and Highway Network Management activities (£0.9m), less 

additional staffing (parking management and transformation) and income 

pressures (TCIP) within the Transport and Parking Services activity (£0.3m).   

26. A key risk is in securing forecast savings within the Highways service, on re-

financing of the Streets Ahead Programme (£350k) and delivering previous 

Budget Improvement Plans to increase advertising income (£200k).  The 

position is currently being reviewed by the Director with a view to updating the 

position next month, but every indication shows that these savings will not be 

delivered in 2015/16. 

 

Communities Portfolio 

 

Summary 

27. As at month 5, the Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of an over spend of 

£3.412m. The key reasons for the forecast outturn position are: 

Business Strategy (forecasting a reduction in spend of £173k):  

· The position for Business Strategy is showing favourable due to the 1% pay 

award pressure being held in this area for the whole of Communities.  If this pot 

is distributed across the service the underlying position would be an over spend 

£186k due mainly to the saving in Performance & Planning which will not be 

achieved. 

Care & Support (forecasting an over spend of £3.729m): 

· This overspend is primarily related to over-spends in Learning Disabilities, Long 

Term Support, Provider Services and a reduction in the level of Client 

Contributions receivable in the year.  

· Learning Disabilities is forecasting an over spend of £1.6m. Health income is 

forecast to be lower by £1.5m which is the main reason for this variance. 

However there is also £1m of 2015/16 savings forecast not to be delivered, 

particularly around the work being done with the providers of Supported Living 

and Respite Care bringing prices in line with the LD Provider Framework. This 

is being partly offset by funded pressures which are not expected to play out in 

full within the year. The work on reducing LD expenditure is being overseen by 

the LD Commissioning Board and remains a key financial risk facing 

Communities for the new financial year.  

Page 143



                 Appendix 1 

· Provider Services are showing an over spend against budget of £0.71m, which 

has primarily arisen as a result of the service incurring additional staff costs 

relating to planned efficiencies not yet realised.  

· Contributions to Care is showing an over spend of £0.68m against budget, 

which includes a shortfall of £0.9m on fairer contributions due to the numbers of 

service users being less than the original budget assumptions because of 

business demand management and the application of eligibility criteria. Also 

there is a shortfall of £0.3m on ILF contributions. This is offset by increases in 

Property Income £0.39m and Continuing Health Care Income £0.19m.   

· Long Term Support is showing an over spend of £0.76m. This constitutes the 

net position of an over spend in adults purchasing of £1.3m, which includes an 

increased demand pressure on the adults purchasing budget of £1.6m, with an 

under spend across the remainder of the service of £0.54m. This underspend is 

predominantly the saving of £0.4m achieved in the 14/15 MER, which was 

brought forward into 15/16, along with vacancies in the current establishment. 

· Access, Prevention & Reablement is showing an under spend of £0.04m. This 

is where external funding has been received from Health Partners and is 

unlikely to be spent, in its entirety, due to gaps in spending associated with 

recruiting and retaining the number of temporary staff employed in this area.  

Commissioning (forecasting a reduction in spend of £8k):  

· A reduction in spend forecast by Commissioned Housing of £756k – the main 

area of under spend is reduced expenditure of £656k on Housing Related 

Support Contracts. 

· A forecast over spend against Commissioned Mental Health Services £971k 

due to increased demand and savings not considered deliverable against Older 

People’s mental health. 

Community Services (forecasting an over spend of £171k):  

· There is a forecast overspend of £188k in Locality Management, primarily 

relating to the anticipated non-achievement of 2015/16 savings targets related 

to reductions in the level of Grants paid to Voluntary Bodies and in regard to 

Ward Pots. 

 

Housing General Fund (forecasting a reduction in spend of £306k): 

The Housing General Fund is a new Division, established this year to have all of 

the Housing General Fund revenue expenditure in one place within the General 

Ledger. The net budget for 2015/16 is £3.1m.  

Page 144



                 Appendix 1 

· As at month 5, the Housing General fund is forecasting an under-spend of 

£306k, comprising mainly a reduction in demand for the Local Assistance 

Scheme and a reduction in spend Homelessness Prevention Fund. 

Financial Results 

 
 

Commentary 

28. The following commentary concentrates on the changes from the previous 

report at month 3. 

· Business Strategy has an improved position of £181k which is predominantly 

due to reduced spend on staffing being forecast and additional income 

achieved. 

· Care and Support has an adverse change of £225k mainly due to 

o Reduced levels of income against Contribution to Care £100k, 

Independent Living Fund £136k, Residential and Nursing £121k offset by 

increased income against Integrated Charge £331k. 

o Adult purchasing budget increased spend of £590k, due to increased 

demand.  

o Learning Disabilities increased purchasing costs £178k offset by a 

reduction in spend on Assessment and Care Management £107k. 

o Reablement Services reduction in spend in staffing levels £184k and 

vacancies in Adult Placements Shared Lives £163k. 

· Commissioning have an improved position of £391k due to 

o The carry forward request below £415k on Transformation Challenge 

Award Grant, project expected to be completed during 2016/17. 

o Housing Related Support £122k further under spend due to continued 

delay of project start now expected January 2016.    

Service Forecast FY FY Movement

Outturn Budget Variance from Month 

£000s £000s £000s

BUSINESS STRATEGY             6,006 6,179 (173) ò

CARE AND SUPPORT              114,549 110,820 3,729 ñ

COMMISSIONING    29,982 29,990 (8) ò

COMMUNITY SERVICES            6,044 5,873 171 ó

HOUSING GENERAL FUND          2,786 3,091 (306) ò

GRAND TOTAL 159,366 155,954 3,412 ò

Page 145



                 Appendix 1 

Resources Portfolio 

Summary 

29. As at month 5 the Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of a reduction in 

spending of £544k, an improvement of £960k from the month 3 position. The 

key reasons for the forecast outturn position are: 

· £100k  over spend in Commercial Services due to under recovery of 

income; 

· £349k over spend in Commercial Services (Savings) due to a shortfall in 

income from cashable procurement savings; 

· £327k over spend in Central Costs due mainly to an overspend of £443k 

on Council Tax and Business Rates Collection; 

Offset by: 

· £353k under spend in Finance due mainly to over recovery of income 

from the 60 day bad debt and savings on Employees from unfilled 

vacancies; 

· £777k under spend in Housing Benefit due to the recovery of high value 

over payments as a result of a DWP data-matching fraud and error 

initiative. 

 

Financial Results 

 

Service Forecast FY FY Movement

Outturn Budget Variance from Month 

£000s £000s £000s

BUSINESS CHANGE & INFORMATION SOLUTIONS 979 1,010 (31) ó

COMMERCIAL SERVICES           685 585 100 ò

COMMERCIAL SERVICES (SAVINGS) (1,279) (1,628) 349 ò

CUSTOMER SERVICES             1,790 1,814 (24) ó

FINANCE                       4,623 4,976 (353) ò

HUMAN RESOURCES               3,316 3,415 (99) ó

LEGAL SERVICES                3,392 3,408 (16) ó

RESOURCES MANAGEMENT & PLANNING   292 308 (16) ó

TRANSPORT AND FACILITIES MGT  15,763 15,772 (9) ò

TOTAL 29,563 29,660 (97) ò

CENTRAL COSTS                 26,380 26,050 330 ó

HOUSING BENEFIT (50) 727 (777) ó

GRAND TOTAL 55,893 56,437 (544) ò

Page 146



                 Appendix 1 

 

Commentary 

30. The following commentary concentrates on the changes from the month 3 

position. 

Commercial Services  

31. A forecast £100k overspend, due to a shortfall in income from traded activities 

through the sale of toolkits. This is an improvement of £124k from the previous 

month. 

32. The improvement since month 3 is largely due to additional income being 

confirmed. 

Commercial Services (Savings)  

33. A forecast £349k overspend, due to a shortfall in income from cashable 

procurement savings.  This is an improvement of £303k from the month 3 

position. 

34. The improvement since month 3 is largely due to an additional £303k of 

forecast income. The forecast income has been prepared conservatively and 

only includes reasonably certain income streams. 

Finance 

35. A forecast £353k reduction in spending, due mainly to over recovery of income 

from the 60 day bad debt and savings on Employees from unfilled vacancies. 

This is an improvement of £198k from the month 3 position. 

36. The improvement since month 3 is due to over recovery of income in the ICAM 

Team relating to the 60 Day Rule and under spends in employee costs due to 

unfilled vacancies, salary sacrifice etc. 

Transport and Facilities Management 

37. A forecast £9k reduction in spending. This is an improvement of £312k from the 

month 3 position. 

38. The improvement since month 3 is due to a cash limit transfer to cover the 

underfunding of the unitary charge uplift for 2014/15 and 2015/16 (£112k) and 

increased rates owing to an error in the rating assessment (£108k) for Howden 

House PFI. In addition there has been an over recovery of income on Fleet 

Management and Workshops (£77k). 

 

Page 147



                 Appendix 1 

Policy, Performance and Communications 

 

Summary 

39. As at month 5 the Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of an overspend of 

£441k, an improvement of £469k from the month 3 position. The key reasons 

for the forecast outturn position are: 

· £452k over spend in Communications due to under recovery of income as 

a result of a delay in the implementation of the new advertising contract. 

· £113k over spend in Electoral Registration due to an increase in supplies 

and services costs and employee costs offset by an under spend of £71k 

in Local Elections. 

Financial Results 

 
 

Commentary 

40. The following commentary concentrates on the changes from the month 3 

position. 

Policy, Performance and Communication 

41. A forecast £441k overspend, due mainly to the Advertising contract within 

Communications being delayed until January 2016 resulting in income being 

underachieved. This is an improvement of £15k from the month 3 position. 

42. The improvement since month 3 is due to reductions in expenditure in Policy 

and Improvement (£13k). 

Public Health 

43. A forecast balanced position. This is an improvement of £454k from the month 

3 position. This is due to realignment of budget as part of a review of in year 

cuts to Public Health funding.  

 

 

Service Forecast FY FY Movement

Outturn Budget Variance from Month 

£000s £000s £000s

ACCOUNTABLE BODY ORGANISATIONS 0 0 0 ó

POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMUNICATION 3,070 2,629 441 ó

PUBLIC HEALTH (135) (135) 0 ò

GRAND TOTAL 2,935 2,494 441 ò

Page 148



                 Appendix 1 

Corporate 

Summary 

 

44. The table below shows the items which are classified as Corporate and which 

include: 

· Corporate Budget Items & Corporate Savings:  (i) corporate wide budgets 

that are not allocated to individual services / portfolios, including capital 

financing costs and the provision for redundancy / severance costs, and; (ii) 

the budgeted saving on the review of enhancements and the budgeted 

saving from improved sundry debt collection. 

· Corporate income: Revenue Support Grant, locally retained business rates 

and Council tax income, some specific grant income and contributions 

to/from reserves. 

 
 

 

Commentary 
 

· Corporate Budget Items and Corporate Savings are currently forecasting to 

be broadly balanced. However, there is an underachievement of £700k 

against a Public Health Savings target of £2.5m. This underachievement is 

mainly due to planned in-year grant cuts but has been offset by a forecast 

reduction in redundancy cost within 2015/16. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FY Outturn FY Budget

FY 

Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000

Corporate Budget Items & Savings Proposals 62,871 62,986 (115)

Income from Council Tax, RSG, NNDR, other grants and reserves (502,633) (502,633) 0

Total Corporate Budgets (439,762) (439,647) (115)

Page 149



 

Page 150



2015/16           Appendix 2 
 

 

PUBLIC HEALTH BUDGET MONITORING AS AT 

 31st AUGUST (MONTH 05) 
 

Purpose of the Report 

1. To report on the 2015/16 Public Health grant spend across the Council for the 

month ending 31 August 2015. 

2. The report provides details of the forecast full year spend of Public Health grant 

compared to budget. Key variances are explained and any financial risks are 

discussed in the risk section. 

3. The net reported position for each portfolio/service area would normally be zero as 

public health spend is matched by a draw down of public health grant. For the 

purposes of this report, and in order to identify where corrective action may be 

necessary, we have shown actual expenditure compared to budget where there is 

an underspend position.  Overspends which will affect Portfolios’ revenue positions 

are described in the narrative sections only. 
  

Summary 

4. At month 5 the overall position was a forecast underspend of £627k which is 

summarised in the table below. 

All figures £000s

Portfolio

Forecast full 

year 

expenditure 

Full year 

expenditure 

budget

Full year 

variance 

FY Variance 

Forecast at 

M4

Movement 

from Prior 

Month

CYPF 12,378 12,378 0 0 0

COMMUNITIES 13,531 13,997 (293) (243) (50)

PLACE 3,143 3,403 (260) (392) 132

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH 

(inc PH Intel l igence) 2,407 2,480 (74) (325) 251

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 31,459 32,258 (627) (960) 333

 

5. Key reasons for the forecast under spend are: 

· £293 reduction in spending in Communities of which £193k is uncommitted 

funds that will be clawed back as part of in-year savings. 

· £260k reduction in spending in Place mainly as a result of projects which have 

been put on hold. 

· £74k forecast reduction in spending on Support Services in Director of Public 

Health area.  

Page 151



 

Page 152



2015/16  Appendix 3 
 
 

 

 

Communities Portfolio 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

HRA Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/2016– as at 
August 

 

Purpose of this Report 

1. To provide a summary report on the HRA 2015/2016 revenue budget for 

the month ending 31st August 2015, and agree any actions necessary. 

2. The content of this report will be used as the basis of the content of the 

budget monitoring report to the Executive Management Team and to 

Members. 

 

Summary 

3. The HRA Business Plan is based on the principle of ensuring that 

investment and services required for council housing is met by income 

raised in the HRA. 

4. The 2015-16 budget is based on an assumed in year position of £10.9m 

which is to be used to fund the ongoing HRA Capital Investment 

Programme. In accordance with the HRA’s financial strategy any further in- 

year revenue surplus / savings generated by the account will be used to 

provide further funding for the future HRA Capital Investment programme. 

5. As at month 5 the full year outturn position is a projected £1.6m saving 

compared to budget.  

6. Main areas contributing to the outturn include reduced rental income of 

£314k mainly due to a higher turnover of vacant properties; this is partly 

offset by a forecast reduction in the provision for bad debts. A reduction in 

other service charge income of £84k and a £284k potential increase in 

repair costs due to an unexpected increase in volume and the number of 

vacant properties. These are offset by forecast savings of £2.4m on overall 

running costs, of this £1m relates to staffing as a result of turnover and 

vacancy savings; £0.9m due to re-profiling of projects and £0.5m on other 

running costs.  

 

 

Page 153



2015/16  Appendix 3 
 
 

 

 

Financial Results 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (EXC 

COMMUNITY HEATING)

FY Outturn 

£000's *

FY Budget 

£000's *

FY 

Variance 

£000's *

Movement 

from Month 

4

1.RENT INCOME DWELLINGS                (149,113) (149,427) 314  Ý    

2.OTHER INCOME                (6,739) (6,824) 84  Ý    

3.HOMES-REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE    32,155 31,871 284  Ý    

4.HOMES-FUNDING CAPITAL PROG               38,973 38,973 0 Û   

5.TENANT SERVICES INCL MANAGEMENT                     57,571 59,922 (2,351)  Ý    

6.INTEREST ON BORROWING             14,644 14,579 65 Û   

Total (12,509) (10,905) (1,604)

8.CONT TO CAPITAL PROG 12,509 10,905 1,604  Ý    

*subject to roundings  
 
 
Community Heating 

7. The budgeted position for Community Heating is a draw down from 

Community Heating reserves of £337k.  As at month 5 the position is a 

draw down from reserves of £237k resulting in a saving of £101k. 

 

COMMUNITY HEATING
FY Outturn 

£000’s *

FY Budget 

£000’s *

FY 

Variance 

£000’s *

Movement 

from Month 

4

INCOME (2,925) (2,760) (164)  Ý    

EXPENDITURE 3,162 3,098 64 ß

Total 237 337 (101)

*subject to roundings  

 

Housing Revenue Account Risks. 

8. There are a number of future risks and uncertainties that could impact on 

the 30 year HRA business plan.  As well as the introduction of Universal 

Credit, outlined elsewhere in the report the Government has recently 

announced a number of further changes in the July 2015 Summer Budget 

Statement and Welfare Reform and Work bill. These include a revision to 

social housing rent policy, which will reduce rents for the next four years. 

This will have a considerable impact on the resources available to the HRA 

Business Plan. In addition, the Governments “Pay to Stay” policy 

announcement and other changes to Housing benefits will impact on both 

tenants and the HRA business plan. Work is currently underway to assess 

the financial impact of these. Other identified risks to the HRA are: 

Page 154



2015/16  Appendix 3 
 
 

 

· Interest rates:  fluctuations in the future levels of interest rates have 

always been recognised as a risk to the HRA. 

· Repairs and Maintenance:  existing and emerging risks within the 
revenue repairs budget include unexpected increased demand (for 
example due to adverse weather conditions) and future changes to 
contractual arrangements. 

Page 155



 

Page 156



Appendix 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is left intentionally blank. 

 

 

Page 157



 

Page 158



  Appendix 5 

 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING AS AT 31st AUGUST 
2015 

 

Summary 

 

1. At the end of August 2015, the end of year position forecasts a variance 

of £28.4m (8%) below the approved Capital Programme, which 

represents an additional £5.6m to that reported in month 4. Project 

managers are forecasting to deliver a capital programme of £266.3m 

which is £3.9m lower than month 4 forecast.  

2. The bulk of the variance in the forecast is in the Place (£16.4m – 16%) 

and Housing programmes (£15.4m – 16%) below budget. These 

variances are discussed in greater detail below at paragraph 6.  

3. The Year to date position shows spending to be £16.3m (15%) and the 

programme has slipped a further £1.6m behind budget in the period.   

       Financials 2015/16 

Portfolio Spend to 
date 

Budget 
to Date 

Variance 
to date 

Full 
Year 
forecast 

Full Year 
Budget 

Full 
Year 
Variance 

Change 
on last 
Mth 
Bud 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

CYPF 16,943  18,085  (1,141) 40,908  40,218  690  1,341  

Place 32,899  45,574  (12,675) 87,713  104,056  (16,343) (5,424) 

Housing 24,907  25,010  (103) 81,551  96,951  (15,401) (1,628) 

Highways 4,743  5,774  (1,031) 17,975  14,561  3,414  98  

Communities 180  218  (38) 321  352  (32) (13) 

Resources 862  2,214  (1,352) 7,216  7,969  (753) (9) 

Corporate 12,739  12,739  -  30,574  30,574  -  -  

                

Grand Total 93,274  109,614  (16,340) 266,257  294,682  (28,425) (5,636) 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Page 159



  Appendix 5 

 

Capital Programme 

     

 
2015-16 2016-17 Future Total 

 
£m £m £m £m 

     Month 4 Approved 
Budget 292.9 166.7 308.5 768.1 

     Additions 2.1 1.7 0.0 3.8 

     Variations -0.3 0.0 0.0 -0.3 

     Month 5 Approved 
Budget 294.7 168.4 308.5 771.5 

 

 

4. The revised programme shows a net increase of £3.5m and reflects the 

approval of £3.8m of demolition works for the Sheffield Retail Quarter 

city centre regeneration project   

Commentary   

5.  The key variances for the forecast £28.4m shortfall against budget by 

the year end by project include: 

· £10.4m slippage on the Sheffield Retail Quarter project 

· £5.5m slippage on the Lower Don Valley Flood defence project.  The 

project has been delayed following lengthy negotiations with the 

selected contractor over the initial cost estimates which were well 

above the approved, funded amount. The latest schedule of works  

is within budget but the contingency for further overspends is greatly 

reduced increasing the risk of a future overspend.  The project is 

now expected to complete in March 2017; 

· The Bus Rapid Transit link and FA pitches are forecasting spend 

above budget pending re-authorisation of these projects to reflect 

the revised scope and funding arrangements 

6. Of the £16.3m shortfall in the year to date,  

· £3.8m behind profile on the two new leisure centres at Graves and 

North Active but the slippage will be caught up and the centres will 

open on their projected dates.  The adjacent 3G pitches at each site 

are an additional £1.2m behind plan following changes to the design 

increasing the number of pitches and a revised funding agreement; 

Page 160



  Appendix 5 

 

· £3.1m behind on the Lower Don valley Flood defence works for the 

reasons above; 

· £1.8m behind on the New Build Council Housing for the reasons 

given above, and, £1.3m slippage on the Council House stock 

increase project; 

· £1.7m delayed start on the Brookhill area improvements. The project 

has been delayed by a number of months awaiting commitments 

from partner organisations which have delayed the transfer of the 

scheme to the Council.  Legal agreements are close to completion to 

enable this transfer to take place;  

· the Roofing programme is £4.4m ahead of plan following a good 

start on site by the selected contractors and an expanded 

programme of work;  

· £0.8m behind on the DVS Remediation project reflecting savings 

made the original approval sum.  The project manager will be 

submitting a revised profile to the new cost plan; 

· £0.9m slippage on the Fire Risk Assessment and remedial works 

programme 

· £0.4m slippage in the demolition of Castle Market 

· Arbourthorne £0.5m behind budget.  

7. The remaining £5.9m variance is scattered across all other projects.  In 

total this group is 27% below budget.  The Month 4 forecast predicts a 

shortfall against budget of £18.5m (19%) by the year end.  

Approvals 

8. A number of schemes have been submitted for approval in line with the 

Council’s agreed capital approval process.  

9. Below is a summary of the number and total value of schemes in each 

approval category: 

· 14 additions to the capital programme with a value of £495k. 

·  16 variations to the capital programme creating a net increase of 

£3.5m;  

· 3 requests for slippage amounting to £7.5m;and 

Page 161



  Appendix 5 

 

· 1 Deletion from the programme of £730k  

10. Further details of the schemes listed above can be found in Appendix 

5.1 and 5.2. 

Finance 

September 2015 

Page 162



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

 -
 A

u
g

u
s

t 

  

S
c

h
e

m
e
 D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
T

y
p

e
 

V
a

lu
e
 

£
0

0
0
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
R

o
u

te
 

 
 

 
 

P
L

A
C

E
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

 
 

 
 

L
o

w
e

r 
D

o
n

 V
a

ll
e

y
 F

lo
o

d
 (

L
D

V
)D

e
fe

n
c

e
 W

o
rk

s
 

T
h
e

 L
D

V
 i
s
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

a
lly

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

in
d

u
s
tr

ia
l 
a

re
a

 o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
. 

 S
e

v
e

re
 f

lo
o

d
in

g
 i
n

 2
0
0

7
 c

a
u
s
e

d
 

m
a

n
y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 s

o
m

e
 c

e
a

s
e

d
 t
ra

d
in

g
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

it
. 

 T
h
e

 a
im

 o
f 

th
is

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 f
lo

o
d

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

’s
 L

o
w

e
r 

D
o

n
 V

a
lle

y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fl
o
o
d

 d
e
fe

n
c
e

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 N

u
rs

e
ry

 S
tr

e
e

t 
a

n
d
 B

la
c
k
b
u

rn
 B

ro
o

k
. 

 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
fl
o
o

d
in

g
 f
o

r 
2

5
6

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
, 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 5

,0
0

0
 j
o
b

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a
 a

n
d

 
re

a
s
s
u

ri
n

g
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
n

e
w

 i
n

v
e

s
to

rs
 t

h
a

t 
a

c
ti
o
n

 i
s
 i
n

 h
a
n

d
 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h
e

 
fl
o
o

d
 r

is
k
. 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n

 n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

  
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

lo
o

d
 d

e
fe

n
c
e

s
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f
u

n
d

in
g

, 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
is

 b
e

in
g
 s

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 s
lip

 £
5

,4
6

2
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

, 
a

s
 p

e
r 

b
e

lo
w

:-
 

    
2

0
1
5

/1
6
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 
2

0
1
7

/1
8
 

T
o

ta
l 

 

 
0

0
0

's
 

0
0

0
's

 
0

0
0

's
 

0
0

0
's

 
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 

B
u

d
g
e

t 
1

0
,3

5
3
 

5
,7

4
1
 

1
5
 

1
6

,1
0

9
 

S
lip

p
a

g
e

 
R

e
q
u

e
s
t 

4
,8

9
0
 

1
0

,0
8

1
 

1
,1

3
8
 

1
6

,1
0

9
 

 
-5

,4
6

3
 

4
,3

4
0
 

1
,1

2
3
 

0
 

 C
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 i
s
 n

o
w

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
7

. 
 T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 f
u

n
d
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 g
ra

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 

S
lip

p
a

g
e

 
-5

,4
6

3
 

n
/a

 

Page 163



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

 -
 A

u
g

u
s

t 

  

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
L
e

v
y
. 

 F
A

 F
o

o
tb

a
ll

 P
it

c
h

e
s

 
In

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

4
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 £

4
.7

m
 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

3
G

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

 
q
u

a
lit

y
 f

o
o

tb
a

ll 
p

it
c
h

e
s
 a

t 
G

ra
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 T
h
o

rn
c
lif

fe
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 d

ri
v
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 “
g
ra

s
s
 r

o
o

ts
” 

fo
o

tb
a

ll.
 

 F
u

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
w

a
s
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:  

   
 

 
G

ra
v
e

s
 

T
h

o
rn

c
li

ff
e

 
T

o
ta

l 

F
A

 
1

,5
0
3
 

 
8

1
9
 

6
8

3
 

1
,5

0
3
 

S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 
1

,0
0
0
 

 
5

0
0
 

5
0

0
 

1
,0

0
0
 

F
o

o
tb

a
ll

 F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

1
,0

0
0
 

 
5

0
0
 

5
0

0
 

1
,0

0
0
 

S
C

C
 

1
,1

7
2
 

 
6

7
2
 

5
0

0
 

1
,1

7
2
 

 
4

,6
7
5
 

 
2

,4
9
1
 

2
,1

8
3
 

4
,6

7
5
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
u

b
s
e

q
u
e

n
t 
to

 t
h

is
 a

p
p
ro

v
a

l 
th

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 s
c
o

p
e

 f
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
is

 
n

o
w

 s
o

u
g
h

t:
 

 -
 A

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

3
G

 p
it
c
h

e
s
 a

t 
e

a
c
h
 s

it
e

 f
ro

m
 1

 t
o

 2
 

- 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

it
c
h

 a
t 
T

h
o

rn
c
lif

fe
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 a

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 d
ra

in
a

g
e

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

  
  
  

th
e

 
a

d
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
a

tt
e

n
u

a
ti
o
n

 t
a

n
k
s
 u

n
d
e

r 
th

e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

. 
- 

C
o

a
l 
M

in
in

g
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
t 
T

h
o

rn
c
lif

fe
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 t
o
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e
 g

ro
u

ti
n

g
  

 
w

o
rk

s
 i
n

to
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 m

in
e

 s
h

a
ft

s
. 

- 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 s

ti
p

u
la

te
d

 t
h

a
t 
b

o
th

 s
it
e
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g
 f

ro
m

 o
ri
g
in

a
l 

d
e

s
ig

n
s
 

- 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d

 c
o

s
ts

 f
o

r 
e
a

rt
h

w
o

rk
s
 o

n
 b

o
th

 s
it
e
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 l
e

v
e

l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
. 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

2
,4

2
4
 

M
o

d
u

la
r 

B
u

ild
in

g
s
 -

 i
t 

is
 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 
u

ti
lis

e
 a

 f
u

ll 
s
in

g
le

 s
ta

g
e

 
s
e

le
c
ti
v
e

 
te

n
d
e

r 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

v
ia

 o
p

e
n

 
a

d
v
e

rt
 

 
P

it
c
h

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 
v
ia

 t
h

e
 S

p
o

rt
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
g
ra

s
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

F
o

o
tb

a
ll 

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o
n

 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
th

e
 3

G
 p

it
c
h

e
s
. 
  

 
O

th
e

r 
w

o
rk

s
 b

y
 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
it
h

 
B

A
M

 a
n
d

 K
ie

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

Page 164



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

 -
 A

u
g

u
s

t 

  

- 
T

h
e

 B
A

M
 a

n
d
 K

ie
r 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
w

o
rk

s
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 o
ri
g
in

a
l 
d

e
s
ig

n
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

s
ti
n
g
s
 

 It
 f

o
llo

w
s
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 c

o
s
ts

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 v
a

ri
e

d
 a

s
 f
o

llo
w

s
: 

·
 

F
A

 P
it

c
h

 (
G

ra
v
e

s
) 

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

 £
8

4
4

k
 f

ro
m

 £
2

,4
9
1

k
 t
o

 £
3

,3
3
5

k
 

·
 

F
A

 P
it

c
h

 (
T

h
o

rn
c

li
ff

e
) 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

£
1

,5
8

0
k
 f

ro
m

 £
2

,1
8

3
k
 t

o
 £

3
,7

6
3

k
 

 F
o

r 
re

a
s
o

n
s
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il,

 t
h

e
 F

o
o
tb

a
ll 

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
, 

S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d
 a

n
d

 
F

o
o

tb
a

ll 
F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 f
u
n

d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
n

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

la
c
e

d
 b

y
 d

ir
e

c
t 

fu
n
d

in
g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 
E

x
c
h

e
q
u

e
r 

a
n

d
 a

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
t 

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
to

 m
e
e

t 
th

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 c
o

s
ts

 l
e

a
v
in

g
 a

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 g

a
p

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 t

o
 b

e
 m

e
t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
p

ru
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 o

f 
£

7
0
0

k
 (

s
e

e
 t

a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
) 

a
t 

a
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

£
4

7
k
 p

.a
. 

to
 t

h
e

 C
u

lt
u

re
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 

b
u

d
g
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

2
5

 y
e

a
rs

. 
   

 
 

G
ra

v
e

s
 

T
h

o
rn

c
li

ff
e

 
T

o
ta

l 

E
x

c
h

e
q

u
e

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 

4
,8

7
0
 

 
2

,4
3
5
 

2
,4

3
5
 

4
,8

7
0
 

S
C

C
 (

C
R

P
) 

1
,1

7
2
 

 
6

7
2
 

5
0

0
 

1
,1

7
2
 

S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 
4

0
0
 

 
2

0
0
 

2
0

0
 

4
0

0
 

G
a

p
 -

 (
P

ru
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

) 
6

5
7
 

 
2

8
 

6
2

8
 

6
5

7
 

 
7

,0
9
9
 

 
3

,3
3
5
 

3
,7

6
3
 

7
,0

9
9
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
in

a
l 
v
e

rs
io

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 f
u
n

d
in

g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
x
c
h

e
q
u

e
r 

a
n

d
 S

p
o

rt
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 F
u

n
d

in
g
 

h
a

v
e

 y
e

t 
to

 b
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e
d

. 
 F

u
tu

re
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 w

ill
 s

e
e

k
 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
to

 a
c
c
e

p
t 

th
e

 g
ra

n
t 
o

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 a

re
 k

n
o

w
n

 b
u

t 
it
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

s
e

 w
ill

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
 t

h
e

 s
a
m

e
 a

s
 t

h
o

s
e

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 

a
g
re

e
d

, 
o
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o
 s

p
e
n

d
 t
h

e
 g

ra
n

t 
b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
. 
 T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
p

la
n

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

fo
rm

u
la

te
d

 t
o
 m

e
e

t 
th

is
 i
m

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

. 

th
e

 l
e

is
u

re
 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
  
a

t 
G

ra
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 
T

h
o

rn
c
lif

fe
 

re
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 

C
a

th
e

ri
n

e
 S

tr
e
e

t 
O

p
e
n

 S
p

a
c

e
 

C
a

th
e

ri
n

e
 S

tr
e
e

t 
O

p
e

n
 S

p
a

c
e

 i
s
 a

 s
it
e

 s
u
ff

e
ri
n

g
 f

ro
m

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a

n
ti
s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

is
s
u

e
s
. 

N
e

w
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 b

u
ilt

 o
p

p
o

s
it
e

 t
h
e

 s
it
e
 a

n
d

 S
1

0
6
 m

o
n

e
y
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

it
e

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 t
a

c
k
le

 t
h
e

 c
u
rr

e
n

t 
a

n
ti
s
o

c
ia

l 
is

s
u

e
s
 b

y
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 u

p
 v

ie
w

s
 a

n
d

 

A
d

d
it
io

n
 

3
6
 

In
-H

o
u

s
e

 &
 3

 
Q

u
o

te
s
 

Page 165



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

 -
 A

u
g

u
s

t 

  

s
ig

h
t 

lin
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 g
re

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

. 
 T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
ill

 c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 t
h
e
 s

it
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
-l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
, 

re
m

o
v
a

l 
o
f 

o
v
e

rg
ro

w
n

 s
h

ru
b

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
d

u
n
d

a
n
t 

ta
rm

a
c
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d
 b

o
u

n
d
a

ry
 a

n
d

 e
n
tr

a
n

c
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 

 S
o

m
e

 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 w

o
rk

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

a
t 

ri
s
k
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 
P

a
rk

s
 &

 C
o
u

n
tr

y
s
id

e
’s

 i
n

 h
o
u

s
e

 t
e

a
m

’s
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l.
  

T
h

re
e

 
q
u

o
ta

ti
o

n
s
 w

e
re

 o
b

ta
in

e
d

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 l
o

w
e

s
t 

q
u

o
te

 (
M

H
H

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 

£
6

,9
0

0
.0

0
) 

w
a

s
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

is
 w

o
rk

. 
 T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 f
u

lly
 f

u
n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 S

1
0

6
. 

 
 

 
 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

:-
 

 
 

 

C
a

rb
ro

o
k

 U
rb

a
n

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 

C
e

n
tr

e
 R

e
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 –

 
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h

e
 r

e
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
U

T
C

 (
U

rb
a
n

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
o

n
tr

o
l)
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

s
ta

ff
,  
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
ll 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

tr
a
ff

ic
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t,
 f

ro
m

 C
a

rb
ro

o
k
 t

o
 t

h
e

 T
o

w
n

 H
a

ll 
a

s
 a

 p
re

c
u

rs
o

r 
to

 t
h
e

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
o
f 

th
e

 C
a

rb
ro

o
k
 s

it
e

. 
  
A

 p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 C

a
rb

ro
o

k
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
y
 w

is
h

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 v
a

c
a

n
t 

p
o

s
s
e

s
s
io

n
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
6
. 

S
e

p
a

ra
te

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
fo

r 
th

is
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 a

s
 n

o
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 U

T
C

 m
o

v
e

 
w

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 i
n

it
ia

l 
W

o
rk

p
la

c
e

 R
e

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 

 A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
is

 s
o

u
g
h

t 
a

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e

 f
o

r 
£

1
0

0
k
 t
o

 c
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
B

ri
ti
s
h

 T
e

le
c
o
m

 t
o

 m
o

v
e

 t
h
e
ir
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

e
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t,
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

t 
£

5
0

k
 e

a
c
h

, 
 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
s
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 a

n
d

 B
T

 l
e
a

d
 t
im

e
s
 a

n
 a

d
v
a

n
c
e

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 B

T
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 
p

la
c
e

d
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 a
n
d

 q
u

o
ta

ti
o

n
s
 o

b
ta

in
e
d

 a
n

d
 t
e

n
d

e
rs

 a
w

a
rd

e
d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

o
rk

s
 a

t 
ri
s
k
. 

 
 T

h
e

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

 w
ill

 c
o

m
p

ri
s
e

 a
 ‘
lif

t 
a
n

d
 s

h
if
t'
 o

f 
1

5
 s

ta
ff

 f
ro

m
 C

a
rb

ro
o

k
 t

o
 a

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 T
o

w
n

 H
a

ll.
  
S

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 m

o
v
e

 a
n
d

 r
e

-i
n

s
ta

ll 
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

A
d

d
it
io

n
: 

K
e

y
 I

te
m

 
1

0
0
 

W
a

iv
e

r 
fo

r 
B

T
 

w
o

rk
s
 a

s
 s

o
le

 
s
u

p
p

lie
r.

 
 

3
 q

u
o

ta
ti
o

n
s
 

fo
r 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 

s
u

rv
e

y
 w

o
rk

s
 

 

Page 166



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

 -
 A

u
g

u
s

t 

  

tr
a
ff

ic
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 

to
 a

v
o

id
 i
n

v
a

lid
a

ti
n

g
 w

a
rr

a
n

ti
e

s
. 

 T
h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d
 w

ri
te

 d
o

w
n

 o
f 

b
o
th

 t
h
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 i
ts

e
lf
 a

n
d
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
re

fu
rb

is
h
m

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

s
 o

f 
£
5

9
0

k
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 T

h
in

k
in

g
 S

p
a

c
e

 S
y
s
te

m
s
 L

td
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 c
a

p
it
a

lis
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

S
o

u
th

 Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 I
n

te
lli

g
e

n
t 

T
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 S

y
s
te

m
 p

ro
je

c
t.

  
 T

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
(e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

t 
£

5
5
0

k
) 

a
re

 t
o

 b
e

 f
u
n

d
e
d

 f
ro

m
 P

ru
d

e
n
ti
a

l 
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
n

te
re

s
t 

re
p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 m

e
t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 W
id

e
r 

A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
. 
 P

ru
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 b
a

s
e

d
 u

p
o

n
 a

n
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

ra
te

 o
f 

5
%

 f
o

r 
1
0
 

y
e

a
rs

. 

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 W
o

rk
s

 –
 S

ta
g

e
 1

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 e

s
ta

te
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 d

a
ti
n

g
 b

a
c
k
 t

o
 V

ic
to

ri
a

n
 t

im
e

s
 (

a
n

d
 s

o
m

e
 

e
v
e

n
 e

a
rl
ie

r)
. 

 M
a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 l
is

te
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

c
a

te
g
o

ry
, 

G
ra

d
e

 
1

. 
 T

h
is

 p
la

c
e

s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
o

n
e

ro
u

s
 d

u
ty

 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 a

n
d

 p
re

s
e

rv
e

 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 f
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 i
t 

m
ig

h
t 

b
e
 m

o
re

 c
o

s
t 

e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 t
o

 d
e

m
o

lis
h

. 
T

h
e

 e
le

c
tr

ic
a

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 n

o
w

 
re

q
u

ir
e

 e
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
re

fu
rb

is
h

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 r

e
n

e
w

a
l 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 k

e
e

p
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h

 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 f
it
 f
o

r 
p
u

rp
o

s
e

. 
T

h
e
 f

e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

o
rk

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
, 
a

t 
£
5

6
k
 a

n
d
 £

4
4

.5
k
 

re
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
, 

a
n

d
 a

re
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 b

e
c
a
u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 l
is

te
d

 s
ta

tu
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
. 

 
 T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 o

f 
p
o

te
n
ti
a

l 
c
lo

s
u

re
 o

f 
b
u

ild
in

g
s
 i
f 

th
e
 w

o
rk

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 i
n

 g
o
o

d
 t

im
e

. 
It

 w
ill

 b
e

 f
u

n
d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 a
n

 a
g
re

e
d

 2
0
1

5
-1

6
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
s
o
u

rc
e

 P
o

o
l 
b

id
. 

A
d

d
it
io

n
 

1
0

0
.5

 
In

-h
o

u
s
e

 
d

e
liv

e
ry

: 
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
s
ta

g
e

 o
n

ly
 

S
u

rv
e

y
s
 b

y
 

q
u

o
te

s
/t
e

n
d
e

r 

R
a

d
o

n
 W

o
rk

s
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
R

a
d
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
, 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 e
n
s
u

in
g
 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

 o
f 

ra
d
o

n
 

e
x
tr

a
c
ti
o

n
 u

n
it
s
 a

t 
W

a
lk

le
y
 L

ib
ra

ry
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

W
a
to

to
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
. 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 i
n

s
ta

ll 
e

x
tr

a
c
ti
o

n
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 

(f
a

n
s
, 
p

u
m

p
s
 e

tc
. 
a

s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 b

y
 t

e
c
h
n

ic
a

l 
s
u

rv
e

y
) 

to
 r

e
m

o
v
e

 R
a

d
o
n

 f
ro

m
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

h
e

re
 l
e

v
e

ls
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
o
n

it
o

re
d
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
 a

b
o

v
e

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 l
im

it
s
 

T
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 f
u

n
d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty
 B

lo
c
k
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 -

 i
ts

e
lf
 f

u
n

d
e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 

A
d

d
it
io

n
 

5
0
 

3
 Q

u
o

te
s
 

 

Page 167



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

 -
 A

u
g

u
s

t 

  

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 P

o
o

l.
 

S
ta

n
if

o
rt

h
 R

o
a

d
 S

it
e
 

T
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
a

s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 w

it
h

 a
 £

1
.1

m
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
to

 m
e

e
t 
F

ir
e

 R
is

k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

w
o

rk
s
 

a
t 

D
a

rn
a

ll 
S

ta
r 

W
o
rk

s
 a

n
d

 S
ta

n
if
o

rt
h

 R
o

a
d
. 

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 l
a

tt
e

r 
h
a
v
e

 n
o

t 
y
e

t 
b

e
e

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

d
u

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 f
u

tu
re

 p
la

n
s
 f
o

r 
S

ta
n

if
o

rt
h
 R

o
a
d

 s
ti
ll 

n
e

e
d

in
g
 t

o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

, 
d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 d
e

la
y
 i
n

 f
in

a
lis

in
g
 

th
e

 C
IP

 (
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 I

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
)  

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 I
t 

is
 f

o
r 

th
a

t 
re

a
s
o
n

 t
h
a

t 
a

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 
re

m
o

v
e

 t
h
e

 S
ta

n
if
o

rt
h

 R
o

a
d

 e
le

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 r
e

-s
u

b
m

it
  

it
 i
f 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 a

t 
a
 l
a

te
r 

s
ta

g
e

 a
n
d

 l
e

a
v
e

 o
n

ly
 

th
e

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

th
e

 D
a

rn
a

ll 
w

o
rk

s
 o

f 
£
3

7
0

k
 i
s
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

 F
u

n
d

s
 t
o

 b
e

 d
ra

w
n

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

tu
rn

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

a
t 
b

lo
c
k
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

 a
s
 a

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 u

n
ti
l 
s
u

c
h
 

ti
m

e
 i
t 

is
 n

e
e

d
e
d

 o
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

IP
 i
s
 k

n
o

w
n

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 a
t 
S

ta
n

if
o

rt
h

 R
o
a

d
 c

a
n

 b
e
g
in

. 

D
e

le
ti
o

n
 

-7
3

0
 

n
/a

 

H
e

a
lt

h
 &

 S
a

fe
ty

 C
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
 B

lo
c

k
 A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 

T
h

is
 v

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 s

e
e

k
s
 t
o

 a
p

p
ly

 £
5

0
k
 t
o

 t
h

e
 R

a
d
o

n
 W

o
rk

s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n

d
 a

d
d

 b
a

c
k
 £

7
3
0

k
 o

f 
fu

n
d

s
 

o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 S

ta
n

if
o

rt
h
 R

o
a
d

 w
o

rk
s
 a

s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

 
th

e
 D

a
rn

a
ll 

F
R

A
 W

o
rk

s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
s
 n

o
te

d
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

6
8

0
 

n
/a

 

W
o

o
d

s
e

a
ts

 H
u

b
 

In
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2

, 
C

a
b

in
e
t 

a
p
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
to

 d
is

p
o

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e
n
t 
W

o
o
d

s
e

a
ts

 L
ib

ra
ry

 t
o

 
e

n
a
b

le
 t

h
e

 s
it
e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 w
it
h

 a
 g

ro
u
n

d
 f

lo
o

r 
re

ta
il 

u
n

it
 f

lo
o

r 
a

n
d

 a
 n

e
w

 f
ir
s
t 
fl
o
o

r 
lib

ra
ry

. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l,
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
a

s
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

e
d

 b
y
 W

o
o
d
s
e
a

ts
 M

e
d

ic
a

l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 r
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h
e

 s
it
e

 a
s
 a

 c
o
m

b
in

e
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 h

u
b

 w
h

ic
h

 w
o

u
ld

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 n
e

w
 s

u
rg

e
ry

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
 n

e
w

 l
ib

ra
ry

 o
n

 t
h
e

 g
ro

u
n

d
 f

lo
o

r.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 i
n

 
lin

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 l
a

te
r 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 F
u

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

’s
 

L
ib

ra
ry

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 w

h
e

re
 W

o
o
d
s
e
a

ts
 L

ib
ra

ry
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d

 a
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

1
1

 c
it
y
 w

id
e

 h
u

b
 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

re
a
te

d
. 

 T
e

rm
s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e
n

 a
g
re

e
d

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 e
n

a
b
le

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 h

u
b
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
to

 
p

ro
c
e

e
d

. 
In

 o
rd

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
to

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
, 

th
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 d
e
m

o
lis

h
 a

n
d
 

c
le

a
r 

th
e
 s

it
e

 o
f 

th
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 L

ib
ra

ry
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

 
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
 

1
0

0
 

3
 C

o
m

p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 
q
u

o
te

s
 

Page 168



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

 -
 A

u
g

u
s

t 

  

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
is

 b
e

in
g
 s

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 u
ti
lis

e
 £

1
0
0

k
 C

R
P

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 t

o
 e

n
a
b

le
 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
:-

 
 a

) 
In

it
ia

l 
m

o
v
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
lo

c
a
te

 t
h

e
 L

ib
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff

, 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 

s
to

c
k
. 

b
) 

D
e

m
o

lit
io

n
 a

n
d

 s
it
e

 c
le

a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
it
in

g
 L

ib
ra

ry
 b

u
ild

in
g
 s

it
e

. 
 

c
) 

T
h
e

 f
it
-o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e

 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
p

a
c
e

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 n
e
w

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 h

u
b

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 

(h
u

b
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
te

d
 b

y
 o

th
e

rs
).

  
d

) 
M

o
v
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 L

ib
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff

, 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
to

c
k
 t

o
 

re
lo

c
a

te
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 f
a

c
ili

ty
. 

 
  

 
 

 

S
U

C
C

E
S

S
F

U
L

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 &

 Y
O

U
N

G
 P

E
O

P
L

E
 :

- 
 

 
 

H
a

lf
w

a
y
 I

n
fa

n
ts

 –
 M

o
b

il
e

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

T
h
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 t
o

 r
e

p
la

c
e

 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 H

a
lf
w

a
y
 N

u
rs

e
ry

 I
n

fa
n
ts

 M
o

b
ile

 w
it
h

 a
 n

e
w

 
m

o
d
e

rn
 m

o
d

u
la

r 
b
u

ild
in

g
. 

 T
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 u

n
fi
t 
fo

r 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 a

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 r

o
lli

n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 C

Y
P

F
 e

s
ta

te
. 
 

S
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
E

n
g
in

e
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 w

e
t 

ro
t 
in

 t
h

e
 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
ti
m

b
e

r 
c
la

d
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 w
in

d
o

w
 f

ra
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
ro

m
is

in
g
 t

h
e

 w
e

a
th

e
r 

ti
g
h

tn
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
u

ild
in

g
. 

 F
a

ilu
re

s
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e
n

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 k
e

y
 s

tr
u

c
tu

ra
l 
e

le
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
o
f 

b
e
a
m

s
 a

n
d

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 c

o
lu

m
n

s
 a

n
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 t
h

e
 l
o

n
g
 t
e

rm
 s

tr
u

c
tu

ra
l 
s
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 c

a
n
n

o
t 
b

e
 

g
u

a
ra

n
te

e
d

. 
 I

t 
is

 n
o

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 c

o
s
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 t
o

 r
e
p

a
ir
 t
h

e
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 r

e
q
u
ir
e

 
v
ir

tu
a

lly
 a

 f
u

ll 
re

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 t

im
b

e
r 

fr
a

m
e

. 
 T

h
e

re
fo

re
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n

 o
f 

th
e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

a
n

d
 r

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 a
 n

e
w

 m
o
d

u
la

r 
u

n
it
 i
s
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
. 

 
T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 t
o

 b
e
 f

u
n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 C
Y

P
F

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 b
lo

c
k
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 i
s
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
. 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

2
4

2
.5

 
C

o
m

p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 
te

n
d
e

r 
–

 
Y

O
R

b
u

ild
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 B

lo
c

k
 A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 

A
 v

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

£
2

4
2

.5
k
 i
s
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 t

o
 a

llo
c
a

te
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 H

a
lf
w

a
y
 I

n
fa

n
ts

 M
o
b

ile
 

R
e

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
je

c
t 

a
s
 n

o
te

d
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
 T

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
Y

P
F

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a

rd
. 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

-2
4

2
.5

 
n

/a
 

 

Page 169



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

 -
 A

u
g

u
s

t 

  

S
c

h
o

o
l 

E
x

p
a

n
s

io
n

s
 –

 F
e

a
s

ib
il

it
y
 w

o
rk

s
 –

 8
 l

o
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 

T
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
ll 

c
o

v
e

r 
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 w
o

rk
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
, 

to
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
 t

h
e

 o
p

ti
o
n

s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p
u

p
il 

p
la

c
e

s
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 d
u

e
 t
o

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 a
n

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 m

id
-y

e
a

r 
tr

a
n

s
fe

rs
. 

 P
ro

v
id

in
g
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

s
c
h
o

o
l 
p

la
c
e

s
 i
s
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 i
s
 e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
to

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 e

n
a
b

lin
g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

s
ta

rt
, 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 f

u
ll 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
a
n

d
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o

 t
h
e

 s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 

O
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

d
e

c
a

d
e
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 h
a

s
 s

e
e
n

 a
 s

te
a

d
y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 
in

 b
ir
th

s
 a

n
d

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

p
p

ly
in

g
 t

o
 j
o

in
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 m

id
-y

e
a

r.
  

R
e

c
e
n

t 
d

a
ta

 s
u

g
g
e

s
ts

 t
h

e
 b

ir
th

 r
a

te
 i
n

 S
h
e

ff
ie

ld
 i
s
, 
fo

r 
th

e
 t

im
e

 b
e

in
g
, 

s
u

s
ta

in
e

d
 a

t 
th

is
 h

ig
h

e
r 

le
v
e

l.
  

T
h

is
 m

e
a

n
s
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 i
n

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 a
re

 o
p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 i
n

 a
 v

e
ry

 t
ig

h
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 m
o

re
 p

la
c
e
s
 a

re
 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 i
n

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 t

o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

te
 l
o

c
a

l 
g
ro

w
th

. 
 T

h
e

 c
it
y
 i
s
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 a

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
g
ro

w
th

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
th

is
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 a
n

d
 a

ro
u

n
d

 4
,5

0
0

 n
e

w
 p

la
c
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
a

d
d
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
in

 r
e

c
e

n
t 
y
e

a
rs

. 
 A

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 p
la

c
e

s
, 

it
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

th
a

t 
b

y
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
9

 a
n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
1

5
 t

o
 1

9
 f

o
rm

s
 o

f 
e

n
tr

y
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

 
s
y
s
te

m
 j
u

s
t 

to
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 a
ll 

c
h

ild
re

n
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rr
in

g
 f

ro
m

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n
to

 Y
e

a
r 

7
. 

 
 T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
re

 a
ll 

to
 b

e
 f
u

n
d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

Y
P

F
 B

a
s
ic

 N
e
e

d
 b

lo
c
k
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
. 

 N
e
w

 8
F

E
 S

e
c

o
n

d
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
S

o
u

th
 W

e
s

t 
–
 f
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

: 
£

1
2

.5
k
 

1
F

E
 E

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
E

c
c

le
s
a

ll
 I
n

fa
n

ts
 –

 f
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

: 
£

2
0

k
 

C
a

rt
e

rk
n

o
w

le
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
R

e
fi

t 
- 

 1
F

E
 C

li
ff

o
rd

 S
c

h
o

o
l 

–
 f
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

: 
£

6
.2

5
k
 

S
o

u
th

 W
e

s
t 

2
F

E
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 T

/P
  

- 
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

: 
£

1
0

k
 

N
e
w

 5
F

E
 S

e
c

o
n

d
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
N

E
 –

 W
o

o
d

s
id

e
 –

 f
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

: 
£

1
0
.7

k
 

1
F

E
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

 -
 N

E
 –

 f
e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

: 
1

6
.5

k
 

N
e
w

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 -

 N
e

th
e

rt
h

o
rp

e
 A

re
a

 –
 f

e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

: 
£

2
0

k
 

F
ir

s
 H

il
l 
2

0
1

3
 B

u
lg

e
 Y

e
a

r 
–
 f

e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

: 
£

6
.5

k
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
 

1
0

2
.5

 
In

-H
o

u
s
e

 
P

ro
v
id

e
r 

B
a

s
ic

 N
e

e
d

 B
lo

c
k

 A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 
A

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

£
1

0
2

.5
k
 i
s
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 t

o
 a

llo
c
a

te
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 s
ta

g
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 8

 B
a

s
ic

 
N

e
e

d
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 l
is

te
d

 a
b

o
v
e

. 
 T

h
e

s
e
 h

a
v
e

 a
ll 

b
e
e

n
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
Y

P
F

 C
a

p
it
a

l 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

-1
0

2
.5

 
n

/a
 

Page 170



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

 -
 A

u
g

u
s

t 

  

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a

rd
. 

 
 

 
 

P
R

O
C

U
R

E
M

E
N

T
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

Y
:-

 
 

 
 

·
 

N
o

n
e
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
 V

A
R

IA
T

IO
N

S
: -

 (
N

o
te

 o
n

ly
) 

 

 
 

 

·
 

N
o

n
e
 

 
 

 

 

Page 171



 

Page 172



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.2
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

 –
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
  S

c
h

e
m

e
 D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
T

y
p

e
 

V
a

lu
e
 

£
0

0
0
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
R

o
u

te
 

T
H

R
IV

IN
G

 N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

S
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
 

 
 

 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

  
 

 
 

9
4

4
4

5
 B

N
9

6
2

 B
u

s
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
is

 b
e

in
g
 s

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h
e

 2
0

1
5
/1

6
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

 b
y
 £

7
5

k
 t
o

 £
6
3

2
k
.  

  
 T

h
e

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 t
o

 f
u
n

d
 f

in
a

l 
c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 n

o
t 
e

lig
ib

le
 t

o
 b

e
 c

la
im

e
d
 f

ro
m

 
B

e
tt

e
r 

B
u

s
e

s
 f

u
n

d
in

g
. 

  
 

 T
h
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
s
 t
o

 b
e

 f
u

n
d
e

d
 b

y
 £

5
0

k
 S

o
u

th
 Y

o
rk

s
h

ir
e

 P
a

s
s
e

n
g

e
r 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
(S

Y
P

T
E

) 
L

o
c
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 P

la
n
 (

L
T

P
) 

a
n

d
 £

2
5
k
 f

ro
m

 p
ri
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

c
a

p
it
a
l 
re

s
e

rv
e

s
  

 F
in

a
l 
c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 M
o

s
b

o
ro

u
g
h

 K
e

y
 B

u
s
 R

o
u

te
 h

a
v
e

 f
ir
s
t 

c
a

ll 
o

n
 t
h

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
re

s
e

rv
e

 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
. 

F
in

a
l 
c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

s
c
h
e

m
e

s
 a

t 
N

e
th

e
rg

a
te

 &
 M

a
lin

 B
ri
d

g
e

 h
a

v
e

 f
ir
s
t 

c
a

ll 
o

n
 t
h

e
 

S
Y

P
T

E
 L

T
P

 c
o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
. 

 T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o

s
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ri
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

s
p

e
n

d
) 

to
 £

2
.6

m
. 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

7
5
 

n
/a

 

9
3

4
2

5
 –

 R
e

lo
c
a

ta
b

le
 C

a
m

e
ra

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

s
e

e
k
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 b
u

s
 l
a
n

e
s
 a

t 
b
u

s
 g

a
te

 
e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
s
it
e

s
, 

w
h

ile
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 a
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
v
in

g
 a

w
a

y
 f

ro
m

 a
n
 a

tt
e

n
d
e

d
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
 

(b
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 u
n

a
tt
e

n
d
e

d
 s

y
s
te

m
) 

a
n
d

 c
h
a

n
g
in

g
 t

h
e

 w
a

y
 t

h
a

t 
o
ff
e

n
c
e

s
 a

re
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 t

im
e

s
c
a

le
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 b

e
tt

e
r 

c
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
o

th
e

r 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
ro

je
c
ts

. 
 

S
lip

p
a

g
e
 

1
8

6
 

n
/a

 

Page 173



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.2
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

 –
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
 A

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
, 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
is

 b
e

in
g
 s

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 s
lip

 £
1

8
6

k
 i
n

to
 2

0
1
6

/1
7

. 
 T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 f
u
n

d
e
d

 
fr

o
m

 p
ri
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

b
u

s
 l
a
n
e

 p
e
n

a
lt
y
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
. 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 

 
 

 

Q
0

0
0
8

7
S

to
c
k

 I
n

c
re

a
s
e

 (
C

H
S

) 
T

h
e

 s
to

c
k
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

r 
C

o
u
n

c
il 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

im
s
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h
e

 s
to

c
k
 

b
y
 1

,0
0

0
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 b

y
 b

u
ild

in
g
 n

e
w

 o
r 

a
c
q
u

ir
in

g
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 h

o
m

e
s
. 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 d
e

la
y
 

in
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 b
u

ild
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
g
o

in
g
 i
n

to
 

liq
u

id
a

ti
o

n
. 
T

h
is

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 t
o

 m
o

v
e

 £
1

.7
8
7

m
 f

ro
m

 1
5

/1
6

 t
o

 1
6

/1
7

 i
n
 r

e
a

c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t
h

is
 

d
e

la
y
. 

S
lip

p
a

g
e
 

-1
,7

8
7
 

N
/A

 

Q
0

0
0
8

8
 P

S
H

 C
a

t 
1
 H

a
z
a

rd
s
 

T
h

is
 v

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 t
o

 r
e
m

o
v
e

 £
5

0
k
 i
n
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 b

lo
c
k
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

C
a

te
g
o

ry
 1

 
H

a
z
a

rd
s
 i
n

 P
ri
v
a

te
 S

e
c
to

r 
H

o
u

s
in

g
. 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 s
a

v
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
, 

fu
n
d

e
d
 b

y
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
R

e
c
e

ip
ts

.  
 T

h
is

 w
o

rk
 w

a
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
 o

f 
p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
h
o

u
s
in

g
 e

s
p
e

c
ia

l 
re

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
n

g
 t
o

 t
h
e

 p
o

o
r 

h
e

a
lt
h

 o
f 

A
s
th

m
a

 s
u
ff

e
re

rs
. 
T

h
is

 w
o

rk
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

in
g
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
s
 i
n

 d
e
fa

u
lt
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a
n

d
 f

u
n
d

e
d
 b

y
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 p
ri
v
a

te
 l
a
n
d

lo
rd

s
. 

 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

-5
0

 
N

/A
 

P
A

R
K

S
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

 
 

 
 

9
4

4
9

2
 R

e
-T

h
in

k
in

g
 P

a
rs

o
n

 C
ro

s
s
 P

a
rk

 
T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 w
id

e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

 ‘
R

e
th

in
k
in

g
 P

a
rk

s
’ 
w

h
ic

h
 a

im
s
 t

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 m

o
d

e
ls

 f
o

r 
p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 g

re
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e

s
. 

 T
h

is
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

 a
im

s
 

to
 i
n

te
g
ra

te
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 g
re

e
n
 s

p
a

c
e

s
 w

it
h

 n
e

w
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

, 
c
re

a
ti
n

g
 

v
a

lu
e

d
, 

s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 s

p
a

c
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

it
y
’s

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 T
h
e

 i
n

it
ia

l 
p

h
a

s
e

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 t

o
 c

o
n

d
u

c
t 

a
 f

e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
y
 (

to
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

In
-

H
o

u
s
e

) 
to

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 r

e
in

v
ig

o
ra

te
 P

a
rs

o
n

 
C

ro
s
s
 P

a
rk

 a
n
d

 i
ts

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 g
re

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

s
.  

 
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
 

(f
e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

) 
 

5
.7

 
In

-H
o

u
s
e

  

Page 174



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.2
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

 –
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
 It

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
e

 f
u

ll 
p

ro
je

c
t 

(s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o
f 

th
e

 f
e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 v

ia
 t
h

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l  
a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 2
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
g
re

e
n

 s
p
a

c
e

, 
d

e
liv

e
r 

1
8

0
0
m

 o
f 

n
e

w
 f

o
o

tp
a

th
, 

6
8

 o
f 

n
e

w
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 o

v
e

rl
o

o
k
in

g
 t
h

e
 p

a
rk

, 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

a
rk

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
, 

c
re

a
te

 2
 n

e
w

 p
a

rk
 e

n
tr

a
n

c
e
s
 &

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
 a

 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
m

o
d

e
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

a
rk

  
 T

h
e

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 f
o

r 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 f
ro

m
 S

1
0

6
 m

o
n

ie
s
. 

 
 

 
 

IN
 T

O
U

C
H

 O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
T

IO
N

 
 

 
 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

 
 

 
 

A
b

b
e

y
d

a
le

 I
n

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
H

a
m

le
t 

 
T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 h

a
s
 a

n
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
o
f 

£
3
2

6
.6

k
 t
o

 c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 
m

a
jo

r 
re

p
a

ir
s
 t

o
 

th
e

 d
a
m

 w
a

ll 
to

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

th
e
 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
w

a
te

r.
  
T

h
is

 c
o

m
p

ri
s
e

d
 d

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

 
p

o
n
d

 l
in

e
r,

 a
g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 E
n

g
lis

h
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e

 b
e

c
a
u

s
e

 o
f 

it
s
 l
is

te
d

 s
ta

tu
s
, 

a
t 

a
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

£
3

2
6

.6
k
. 
 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
a

s
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 i
n

 n
a

tu
re

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
w

a
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

to
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

 
"w

o
rs

t 
c
a

s
e

 s
c
e

n
a

ri
o

" 
d

e
s
ig

n
. 

F
o

rt
u
n

a
te

ly
, 

 a
s
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
e

d
, 

a
 s

im
p

le
r 

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

v
e

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

  
re

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
re

p
a

ir
 d

e
s
ig

n
 b

e
in

g
 c

h
e
a

p
e

r 
th

a
n

 e
n

v
is

a
g
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 f
u

n
d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 P

o
o

l 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d

 
to

 t
h
e

 H
e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

a
fe

ty
 B

lo
c
k
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
 t
h

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

. 
 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

-1
0

0
.5

 
N

/A
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 &

 S
a

fe
ty

 B
lo

c
k

 A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

  
T

h
is

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 t
o

 a
d

d
 b

a
c
k
 t
h

e
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 A

b
b
e

y
d

a
le

 I
n
d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
H

a
m

le
t 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 f
u

n
d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 T
h
e

 H
e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

a
fe

ty
 B

lo
c
k
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o
n
 a

s
 n

o
te

d
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

1
0

0
.5

 
N

/A
 

 

Page 175



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.2
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

 –
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
 P

R
O

C
U

R
E

M
E

N
T

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 
 

 
 

B
E

T
T

E
R

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 &
 W

E
L

L
B

E
IN

G
 

 
 

 

T
H

R
IV

IN
G

 N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

S
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
 

 
 

 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 F
o

o
tb

a
ll

 P
ro

je
c

t-
 P

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

M
o

d
u

la
r 

P
a

v
il

io
n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

T
h
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t

o
 s

e
e

k
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
to

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 
m

o
d
u

la
r 

c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 p

a
v
ili

o
n

s
 a

t 
b

o
th

 T
h

o
rn

c
lif

fe
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 

a
t 

G
ra

v
e

s
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
 s

it
e

. 
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

A
 W

a
iv

e
r 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 a
 d

ir
e

c
t 

a
p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 I
n

te
g
ra

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

m
o

d
u

la
r 

p
a

v
ili

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

t 
a

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

£
7
9

8
k
 p

e
r 

s
it
e
. 
D

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e
n

 h
e

ld
 w

it
h

 I
n

te
g
ra

 v
ia

 S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 a

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
s
u
m

 
a

n
a

ly
s
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

ig
u

re
 o

f 
£

7
9

8
k
 p

e
r 

s
it
e

. 
If

 t
h

e
 w

a
iv

e
r 

is
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 t

h
e
 

C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
o

u
ld

 n
e

g
o

ti
a

te
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 w

it
h

 I
n

te
g
ra

 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
is

 a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 e
x
p

lo
re

 a
n

y
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 b

o
th

 u
n

it
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

a
 s

in
g
le

 o
rd

e
r.

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

In
te

g
ra

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 M
o
d

u
la

r 
U

n
it
s
 w

ill
 m

e
e

t 
S

p
o

rt
 E

n
g
la

n
d

’s
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
, 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
p
p

ro
v
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
tl
y
 v

e
ri
fi
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
t 
v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 f

ro
m

 S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h
e

 s
h
o

rt
fa

ll 
th

a
t 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 m

e
t 
fr

o
m

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
 

F
o

r m
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

- 
N

E
C

 O
p

ti
o

n
 A

. 
E

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 -

 1
0

0
%

 P
ri
c
e

. 
 

       
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  

 
 

S
in

g
le

 S
o

u
rc

e
 

T
e
n

d
e

r 
v
ia

 
w

a
iv

e
r 

A
 W

a
iv

e
r 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 a
 

d
ir
e

c
t 

a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n
t 

w
it
h

 I
n

te
g
ra

 t
o

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 m

o
d

u
la

r 
p

a
v
ili

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 
c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

t 
a

 
c
o

s
t 

o
f 

£
7

9
7

,8
9
8

 p
e

r 
s
it
e

. 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 176



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.2
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

 –
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

 V
A

R
IA

T
IO

N
S

:-
 (

N
o

te
 o

n
ly

) 
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 

 
 

 

A
b

b
e

y
d

a
le

 R
o

a
d

 C
le

a
rw

a
y
 C

h
a

n
g

e
s

 
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
a

s
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

ll 
s
ig

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 l
in

in
g
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 b

u
s
 l
a

n
e

s
 a

n
d

 l
o

a
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 
w

a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s
) 

to
 e

n
a
b

le
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 b
e

 e
n
fo

rc
e

d
 b

y
 c

a
m

e
ra

. 
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 a
d
d

 £
1

.8
k
 c

a
m

e
ra

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

 t
o
 e

n
a

b
le

 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t.

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
V

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 

1
.8

 
n

/a
 

B
o

s
to

n
 S

tr
e

e
t 

B
u

s
 G

a
te

 

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
a

s
 t

o
 r

e
p
la

c
e

 t
h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
s
 g

a
te

 w
it
h

 a
 n

e
w

 b
u

s
 l
a

n
e

 e
n
fo

rc
e

d
 b

y
 a

 
C

C
T

V
 c

a
m

e
ra

 i
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 a

t 
tw

o
 b

u
s
 s

to
p

s
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
in

g
 a

 n
e

w
 

p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 c
ro

s
s
in

g
 p

o
in

t 
o

n
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 R

o
a

d
  

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 a
d
d

 £
1

2
k
 c

a
m

e
ra

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

 t
o
 e

n
a

b
le

 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t.

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
V

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 

1
2
 

n
/a

 

K
e

y
 B

u
s

 R
o

u
te

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 t
o

 W
o

o
d

h
o

u
s

e
 

T
h
e

 k
e

y
 a

im
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
a

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 b
u
s
 r

e
lia

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 j
o

u
rn

e
y
 t

im
e

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 
fr

e
q
u

e
n

c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 5
2

 b
u

s
 r

o
u

te
 f

ro
m

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 c
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 t
o

 W
o
o
d
h

o
u

s
e

. 
 T

h
e

 w
o

rk
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 r

e
a

l-
ti
m

e
 i
n

te
lli

g
e

n
t 

d
e

te
c
ti
o

n
 (

R
ID

) 
a

t 
a

ll 
s
ig

n
a

l 
s
e

ts
, 
h

ig
h

w
a

y
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 o

n
 

H
a

n
d

s
w

o
rt

h
 R

d
, 

R
e
tf

o
rd

 R
d

 &
 B

a
d

g
e

r 
R

d
, 

a
n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o
 a

ll 
b

u
s
 s

to
p

s
. 

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 a
d
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 £

1
0

k
 P

a
s
s
e

n
g
e

r 
T

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

s
. 

  

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
V

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 

1
0
 

n
/a

 

1
0

 D
a

y
 T

ra
v
e

l 
C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 

T
h
e

 a
im

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

c
y
c
le

s
 a

s
 a

 m
o
d

e
 o

f  
tr

a
v
e

l 
fo

r 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

u
p

ils
. 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
V

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 

-2
2

 
n

/a
 

Page 177



 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.2
 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

 –
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
  T

h
e

 i
n

it
ia

l 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
a

llo
c
a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 i
n

c
o

rr
e

c
t 

a
s
 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 
b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
in

 r
e

v
e

n
u
e

. 
 T

h
e

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 £

2
2

k
 

to
 £

3
k
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
 s

c
o

o
te

r 
s
to

ra
g
e

. 

P
L

A
C

E
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

: 
P

A
R

K
S

 
 

 
 

W
o

o
d

la
n

d
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
B

ir
d

s
 

T
h
e

 a
im

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
w

a
s
 t

h
e

 c
le

a
ra

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 f

e
lli

n
g
 o

f 
B

u
rb

a
g
e

 p
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
re

-e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

n
a
ti
v
e

 b
ro

a
d

le
a

v
e

d
 w

o
o

d
la

n
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
la

n
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 
n

a
tu

ra
l 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

. 
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 a
d
d

 £
2

1
k
 t

o
 b

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

. 
 T

h
e

 
fu

n
d

in
g
 v

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

la
im

e
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 f
u

n
d

e
rs

. 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
V

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 

2
1
 

n
/a

 

H
il

ls
b

o
ro

u
g

h
 P

a
rk

 T
e
n

n
is

 C
o

u
rt

s
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 m

in
o

r 
re

fu
rb

is
h
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
H

ill
s
b

o
ro

u
g
h

 P
a

rk
 t
e

n
n

is
 c

o
u

rt
s
. 

 T
h
e

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 £

9
.7

k
 t
o

 r
e
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 a
c
tu

a
l 
c
o

s
t 
o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t.

  
T

h
e
 f

in
a

l 
c
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
a

s
 £

1
3

.3
k
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 f
u

n
d
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 L
a

w
n

 
T

e
n

n
is

 A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

. 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
V

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 

-9
.7

 
n

/a
 

H
ig

h
 H

a
z
e

ls
 T

e
n

n
is

 C
o

u
rt

s
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
  

a
 t

o
ta

l 
re

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

H
ig

h
 H

a
z
e

ls
 t

e
n

n
is

 c
o
u

rt
s
. 

 T
h
e

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 £

1
8

.4
k
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
c
o

s
t 
o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t.

  
T

h
e
 f

in
a

l 
c
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
a

s
 £

5
9

.7
k
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 f
u

n
d
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 L
a

w
n

 
T

e
n

n
is

 A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

 (
£

3
0

k
) 

a
n

d
 S

1
0

6
 m

o
n

ie
s
 (

£
2

9
.7

k
).

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
V

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 

-1
8

.4
 

n
/a

 

 

Page 178


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	8 Retirement of Staff
	9 Step up to Social Work
	Step up to Social Work (2)
	Step up to Social Work (3)
	Step up to Social Work (4)

	10 Revenue Budget and Capital Programme Monitoring Month 5 (as at 31/8/15)
	Budget Monitoring (2)


